
 
 
 
Committee: 
 

CABINET 

Date: 
 

TUESDAY, 11 MARCH 2014 

Venue: 
 

MORECAMBE TOWN HALL 

Time: 10.00 A.M. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies  
 
2. Minutes  
 
 To receive as a correct record the minutes of Cabinet held on Tuesday, 11 February 2014 

(previously circulated).    
  
3. Items of Urgent Business Authorised by the Leader  
 
 To consider any such items authorised by the Leader and to consider where in the 

agenda the item(s) are to be considered.   
  
4. Declarations of Interest  
 
 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.   

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required 
to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been declared in 
the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).   

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 and in the 
interests of clarity and transparency, Members should declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.   

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or 
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.   

  
  
5. Public Speaking  
 
 To consider any such requests received in accordance with the approved procedure.   

  
  

Reports from Overview and Scrutiny   
 

None  
 



 

 

 Reports  
 
6. Request from the Grand Theatre for Grant Support (Pages 1 - 10) 
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Hamilton-Cox) 

 
Joint Report of Chief Officer (Resources) and Chief Officer (Regeneration & Planning)   
 

  
7. Corporate Performance Monitoring 2013/14 (Pages 11 - 39) 
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Blamire) 

 
Joint Report of Chief Officer (Resources) & Chief Officer (Governance) 
  

  
8. Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
 This is to give further notice in accordance with Part 2, paragraph 5 (4) and 5 (5) of the 

Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2012 of the intention to take the following item(s) in private.   
 
Cabinet is recommended to pass the following recommendation in relation to the following 
item(s):-   
 
“That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) of business, on the 
grounds that they could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act.”   
 
Members are reminded that, whilst the following item(s) have been marked as exempt, it 
is for Cabinet itself to decide whether or not to consider each of them in private or in 
public.  In making the decision, Members should consider the relevant paragraph of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, and also whether the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.  In 
considering their discretion Members should also be mindful of the advice of Council 
Officers.    

  
9. Planned Maintenance of Council Housing (Pages 40 - 46) 
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Smith) 

 
Report of the Chief Officer (Environment)  
 

  
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Eileen Blamire (Chairman), Janice Hanson (Vice-Chairman), Jon Barry, 

Abbott Bryning, Tim Hamilton-Cox, Karen Leytham, Ron Sands and David Smith 
 

 
(ii) Queries regarding this Agenda 

 



 

 

 Please contact Liz Bateson, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582047 or email 
ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iii) Apologies 
 

 Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

 
MARK CULLINAN, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Thursday, 27 February, 2014.   

 



CABINET  
 
 

Request from the Grand Theatre for Grant Support 
11th March 2014 

 
Report of Chief Officers Resources and Regeneration 

& Planning 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To consider a request for financial support from the Grand Theatre in connection with their 
lease of City Council land.   
 

Key Decision  Non-Key Decision x Referral from Cabinet 
Member  

Date of notice of forthcoming 
key decision 

N/A 

This report is public. 

 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS: 

(1) That Cabinet notes the request from the Grand Theatre attached at 
Appendix 1 and indicates whether any further consideration be given 
to the matter, having regard to the issues raised in the report. 

 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 On 3rd January 2014 a representative of the Board for Lancaster Footlights 
submitted a letter to the Council informing of their development proposals for 
the Grand Theatre and requesting financial help in supporting the future of the 
theatre. This letter is attached to this report at Appendix 1. 

 

2.0 Proposal Details 

2.1 The Grand Theatre currently leases from the City Council a piece of land 
adjacent to the theatre, for use as a car park.  Records show that the original 
lease commenced on 01 July 1980 and currently the Grand pays £2,860 p.a. 
in rent (excluding VAT).  The lease run is based on a three year lease 
negotiated in 2005 and has been renewed on a yearly basis since. It is 
Landlord and Tenant Act protected but is not renewed for longer periods 
because this same area of land is also included in the Council’s Development 
Agreement with British Land/Centros and a plan of the area is attached to this 
report at Appendix 2. 

 
2.2 The Grand Theatre is planning to extend the theatre by adding a two storey 

Agenda Item 6 Page 1



extension to the side elevation on the site of the car park currently owned by 
the theatre. This extension would provide additional front of house space for 
the audience, bar facilities and access to the box office. If and when 
completed, this extension would no doubt place a greater importance on the 
area of car park currently leased from the Council. 

 
2.3 The Grand Theatre is seeking grants to allow the completion of the project. 

Partly linked to this the Grand’s Board is now requesting financial assistance 
from the Council equivalent to the cost of their lease for the car park, this 
being £2,900 p.a. (subject to confirmation of the Grand’s VAT status). 
 

2.4 The form of the Grand’s request is expressed in two alternative ways, which 
are expanded on below: 
 
Lease to be based on peppercorn rent: 
The Council operates a policy of charging market rents.  In line with this, a 
peppercorn rent would only be appropriate if a market based lease premium 
was to be paid at the commencement of any new lease term, and that does 
not fit with the Grand’s request.  Furthermore, typically peppercorn rents 
apply to very long leases (the rent being a way to help maintain a formal 
landlord and tenant relationship) but the Council is constrained by the Canal 
Corridor development agreement that is in already place.  For these reasons, 
the granting of a lease on a peppercorn rent is inappropriate and therefore it 
has been discounted as a viable option. 
 
Annual grant award to cover rent costs: 
The Council has the power to award grants to organisations, but in doing so it 
must consider various matters to ensure that any award is lawful, 
representing value for money for the district’s local tax payers as a whole.  
Key considerations are outlined below, in addition to considering the amount 
of the request and also its financing.  Options for the latter are outlined within 
the Financial Implications towards the end of this report. 
 

Purpose of any grant award: 
Although the request makes reference to the Grand’s plans for 
expansion and recognition of its significant role in the arts provision in 
the city, there is no detail provided on what any grant would be used 
for, and/or what the organisation’s current and expected financial 
position is. 
 
Openness and Fairness: 
Although the Council currently provides grants to other arts and 
cultural organisations, it is committed to moving to a commissioning 
basis, to ensure fairness, openness and transparency.  At that time, 
the Grand would have the opportunity to bid for any services and 
activities being commissioned.    
 
Length of any grant award: 
Practically, any grant aid could run until the canal corridor 
development proposals are implemented, and this makes it difficult to 

Page 2



predict the cumulative financial impact to the Council.  For the 
purposes of the Grand’s request, a reasonable assumption may be 
that potentially, any grant awarded could run until the longstop date of 
the canal corridor development agreement. Should Cabinet wish to 
pursue further the Grand’s request in some way, however, Officers 
would advise Members to consider an annual review, to fit with the 
current lease review process or eventually the commissioning 
approach as mentioned above.  In the event that the Canal Corridor 
redevelopment did not go ahead, the clearly the Council would need 
to reconsider its position.   

 
2.5 In view of the above points, if Cabinet is minded to consider the provision of 

financial support to the Grand, this would need to be in the form of a grant but 
more information would be required and this is reflected in the options 
presented below. 

 
2.6 In addition to the request for financial assistance, the Grand’s Board have a 

raised a number of other issues regarding the proposed British Land / 
Centros development. However, these are detailed issues that can only be 
resolved as the canal corridor scheme develops. Suffice to say that British 
Land / Centros are well aware of all of the issues in the letter and Officers will 
clarify the current position with the Grand’s Board members.       

 

3.0 Details of Consultation  

3.1 No consultation has been necessary. 
 

4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 

 Option 1: Consider further 
the request for grant support 
to the Grand Theatre and 
seek further information in 
support. 

Option 2: Do not consider 
further the provision of grant 
support to the Grand Theatre. 

Advantages May provide an opportunity to 
support the Grand Theatre 
and their development 
proposals. 

Avoids extra cost pressures for 
the Council at a time of 
increasing budgetary pressure. 
 
Reduces the likelihood of a 
future conflict of interest with the 
canal corridor redevelopment. 

Disadvantages Involves extra resources 
(officer time) and potential 
extra cost to the Council at a 
time of increasing budgetary 
pressure. 
 

A missed opportunity to 
financially support the Grand 
Theatre. 

Risks May raise expectations. 
 
Cost and value for money 
uncertainties. 
 
Runs contra to aims for 

Could be perceived as showing 
a lack of support for a well 
known cultural facility in the area 
(and also a lack of fairness).   

Page 3



moving to a commissioning 
approach. 
  
Could lead to other similar 
applications for grant aid, or 
perceived unfairness. 
 

 

5.0 Conclusion 

5.1 A successful Grand Theatre benefits the District in artistic, cultural, 
regeneration and community development terms. In reputational terms it is 
probably one of our strongest attractions. It is also a key element in the Canal 
Corridor scheme. There may be case for providing support the Grand 
Theatre, but the full pros and cons for any case are not known. 

 
5.2 There are, however, other such operations within the district that could also 

make a case for assistance. There is also potential for the aspirations of The 
Grand Theatre to conflict with the proposals contained within the 
Development Agreement entered into with British Land/Centros. Therefore, 
consideration must be given as to the appropriateness of such assistance 
should a conflict of interest arise that is detrimental to these regeneration 
proposals. 

 
5.3 It is necessary for Cabinet to balance these matters along with the 

implications of reducing income at a time of increasing budgetary pressure, in 
deciding whether to take this matter any further.  If a decision is made to 
progress the request, a further report would be produced for Cabinet to 
complete its decision-making. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
It is identified as a key part of the Canal Corridor scheme in the adopted Local Plan  
 
It is linked to the Cultural Heritage Strategy, as a successful Grand Theatre benefits the 
District in artistic, cultural, regeneration and community development terms 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 

No impact on the above. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

It is entirely at the discretion of members whether grant assistance is provided for this 
purpose, to this organisation. In terms of the inter- relationship between any lease of the car 
park that maybe granted to the Grand Theatre and the development agreement, there is 
insufficient information for Legal Services to give an opinion on any legal implications. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Page 4



Should the decision be made ultimately to offer grant aid to the Grand Theatre there will be 
an additional cost to the Council, of approaching £2,900 each year, for as many years as 
grant is awarded. 

Potentially, this may be financed through either the arts development budget or the 
Performance Reward Grant Reserve (from the £15K allocated for voluntary sector 
initiatives).  If Cabinet decides to consider the request further, then exact financing options 
would be presented.  

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Property: 

As set out in the report. 

 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The s151 Officer has contributed to the production of this report.  She advises Cabinet to 
consider carefully the considerations outlined in this report in reaching any decision. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and her comments included in the report. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

NONE 

Contact Officer: Richard Hammond 
Telephone:  01524 582638 
E-mail: rhammond@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 5



Stuart Langhorn, 
14 Whernside Grove, 

Carnforth, 
Lancashire. 
LA5 9XH 

stuart.langhorn@sky.com  
07919 927467 

3rd January 2014 
 

Dear Councillor, 
Grand Theatre Lancaster 

 
I am writing to you in my capacity as a board member of the Grand Theatre, 
Lancaster. My purpose is to inform you about the proposed development of 
the theatre and to request your help in supporting its future. 
 
The Grand Theatre, situated on St Leonardsgate, Lancaster is the second 
oldest theatre in operation outside of London. It is run by volunteers and is a 
registered charity. As a venue it is used by professional acts as well as many 
local amateur groups including LADOS, Morecambe Warblers, Red Rose and 
Footlights who provide most of the volunteers for the running of the theatre. 
Unlike other venues in the district, the Grand currently receives no grant 
support from Lancaster City Council. The theatre has been successfully 
managed and its budget has broken even for many years. This year the 
theatre, in common with most venues, has seen a slight down turn in its 
audience numbers as a result of the recession. 
 
The Grand is planning to expand the theatre by adding a two storey extension 
to the side of the theatre. This will provide much needed front of house space 
for the audience, further bar facilities and access to the box office. In turn this 
will mean the venue will continue to be attractive for professional acts and the 
theatre’s financial future can be assured. Members have already raised a 
significant amount of money and are seeking grants to allow the completion of 
the project. 
 
This brings me to our request from the council. The Grand currently rents part 
of its car park from Lancaster City Council. If you are familiar with the theatre 
this is the gravelled part of the car park at the side of the theatre (the tarmac 
area belongs to the theatre and this is where the extension will go). It is used 
by visiting acts and volunteers. The theatre pays £3500 a year to the City 
Council for the rental of this area, and has maintained the area at its own cost. 
We are now requesting that the council rent this area at a peppercorn rent to 
the theatre – recognising its significant role in the arts provision in the city. We 
would remind the council that when there is a production on at the theatre the 
car parks around St Leonardgate are full with charge paying public. The 
council also charged the ITV production team for the rental of the lower car 
park during the filming of Panto and claimed it as a success in its corporate 
plan. It would not seem unreasonable that the council shows its support of the 
theatre and recognises its importance by granting the car park to the theatre 
rather than charging the charity for it.  

Page 6



 
The board of the Grand have already entered into discussions with officers 
from the council regarding this. However, the officers have been unable 
support the request we have made due to the financial restrictions placed 
upon them. This is why I am writing to you directly. As a councillor you have 
the power to authorise this pepper corn rent – or, alternatively, to recommend 
a grant for the rent during the budget process. This is why the board is writing 
to you now. 
 
A related issue is that of the long term future of the land around the theatre as 
part of the potential re-development of the site. We have been very pleased 
with discussions with officers concerning the building at the rear of the theatre 
(currently the musician’s co-op.) The plan was for the council to have sold this 
building to the developers who would then renovate it and lease it to the 
Grand for storage and rehearsal space. The building cannot be knocked down 
as this would undermine the fly tower of the theatre. The Board have 
recommended that the council cede the building directly to the Grand instead 
officers are happy with this proposal.  
 
It was during these discussions that it was revealed that the council intend to 
dispose of the car park at the front of the Grand as part of the proposed 
development. It will then become public open space. In addition Lodge Street, 
which runs down the side of the theatre, will be closed off.  The theatre has 
not been consulted on this idea. We would wish to draw to your attention our 
concerns about these proposals and the impact they will have on the financial 
future of the theatre. The loss of the car park at the front will mean the 
professional acts will have no where to deliver to the theatre, volunteers will 
have no where to park and the proposed development of the theatre will be 
put at risk. The closure of Lodge Street means there is no access to the stage 
door of the theatre for sets and props. Officers tell us that access will be 
through the development – but will not be 24 hour access and certainly not 
during ‘shop’ hours. Clearly, a theatre needs 24 hour access. For example 
visiting acts arrive during the day and need to set up for the evening show – 
when the shops shut is too late. The Grand would be unable to support any 
development that would jeopardise its business by restricting access to the 
theatre during the day. 
 
For this reason we would recommend that the council cedes the piece of land 
at the front of the theatre to the Grand instead of including it in the 
redevelopment scheme. We also recommend Lodge Street is not closed off 
down the side of the theatre. These simple actions will help to support the 
long term future of the theatre. 
 
In summary we are making the following requests: 
 
 

Recommendation Cost to 
LCC 

Advantages Risks 

Peppercorn rent of 
gravelled land at front of 

£3500 per 
year 

Supports theatre 
during recession. 

None. A 
successful theatre 

Page 7



Grand Theatre as part of 
2014-15 budget 

Recognises that 
LCC provides no 
other support to 
the theatre. 
Acknowledges 
contribution to Arts 

enhances night 
time economy and 
income to LCC car 
parks in area. 

Grant of gravelled land to 
theatre 

£3500 per 
year (if 
peppercorn 
rent 
refused) 

Supports long term 
future of theatre 
and access for 
acts and 
volunteers. 
Shows support for 
the proposed 
extension to the 
theatre adjacent to 
this land. 
 

None - Does not 
effect the 
development of 
the area as the 
space is 
designated as 
open space. 

Grant of half of building 
(Musicians Co-op) to 
theatre 

None Supports long term 
future of theatre. 
Will mean the 
theatre does not 
have to rent space 
elsewhere which it 
does at the 
moment at a cost 
of over £5000 per 
annum. 
The building 
cannot be 
removed due to 
the impact its 
demolition will 
have on the fly 
tower. 
Places the building 
in the charities 
ownership instead 
of having the 
theatre rent it from 
a private 
developer. 
 

None- the building 
cannot be 
demolished. 

Lodge Street to remain 
open down side of the 
theatre 

None Supports long term 
future of theatre 
and access for 
acts and 
volunteers. 
Shows support for 
the proposed 
extension to the 

Lodge Street could 
be blocked off 
nearer to Edward 
Street – this will 
need to be 
discussed with the 
developer. 
 

Page 8



theatre adjacent to 
this land. 

We hope that you will be able to support these proposals and look forward to 
hearing from you within the next week or so. A copy of this letter has been 
sent to each group leader on Lancaster City Council as well as each 
councillor so you may wish to respond as a group or as individual councillors. 
Should you be unfamiliar with the theatre or just wish to have a look around 
for yourself we extend an invitation to you to come and visit us. We will be 
more than happy to show you around and discuss the issues and our plans in 
greater depth.  
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Stuart Langhorn   on behalf of Lancaster Footlights Board 

Page 9



T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 r
ep

ro
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
S

ur
ve

y 
m

at
er

ia
l w

ith
 th

e 
P

er
m

is
si

on
 o

f O
rd

na
nc

e 
S

ur
ve

y 
on

 b
eh

al
f o

f t
he

 C
on

tr
ol

le
r

of
 H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ffi
ce

 (
C

) 
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

La
nc

as
hi

re
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
- 

O
S

 L
ic

en
ce

 1
00

02
33

20
 (

C
) 

C
en

tr
e 

of
 m

ap
: 3

47
96

3:
46

18
75

D
at

e:
 1

8/
02

/2
01

4

G
ra

nd
 T

he
at

re
 P

la
n

Page 10



CABINET  

Corporate Performance Monitoring 2013/14 

 11 March 2014 

Report of Chief Officer (Governance) and  
Chief Officer (Resources) 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
To present the corporate performance and financial monitoring reports at Quarter 3 of the 
2013/14 performance monitoring cycle. 

This report is public  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

(1) That Cabinet considers this report and makes any comments or 
recommendations as appropriate. 

1.0 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2013/14 – QUARTER 3 

1.1 The full Corporate Plan Performance Review Report is attached as Appendix 
A.  This report provides a summary of overall performance, across all 
services and portfolios, in relation the Council’s Corporate Plan for Quarter 3 
of the current year.   

1.2 As at Quarter 3, there are no Corporate Plan success measures with a Red 
status when comparing actual performance against target. 

1.3 Throughout the report commentary provided by officers responsible for each 
success measure highlight achievements, adds contextual information, 
identifies issues and outlines actions being taken / planned to get 
performance back on track, where appropriate. 

1.4 Attached as Appendix B is the Corporate Plan Quarterly Trend Report.  This 
report sets out, at a high level, the actual quarterly performance of each 
Corporate Plan success measure since Quarter 3 in 2012/13.  This provides 
both a year-on-year and quarter-by-quarter trending comparison of data / 
information affording more insight on overall performance and supporting 
informed decision-making.   Commentary on the reasons for any variance is 
provided.   

1.5 The Key below sets out the meaning of the ‘direction of travel’ of the data 
trending arrows dependent on whether ‘High is Good’ or ‘Low is Good’ is an 
indicator of performance improving.  

 
 

Agenda Item 7 Page 11



1.6 The Corporate Financial Monitoring report for Quarter 3 is attached at 
Appendix C and shows that there is a current underspend of £51K on the 
General Fund budget and an overspend of £10K on the Housing Revenue 
Account Budget.  For information, monitoring has been against the revised 
budget for this quarter. 

 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT (including Diversity, Human Rights, 
Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 

None arising from this report 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

None arising from this report 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

As set out in the attached Appendices 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: Human Resources / Information Services / 
Property / Open Spaces:  None arising from this report 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
none 

Contact Officer: Performance - Bob Bailey, 
Corporate Planning and Performance 
Manager, Finance – Andrew Clarke, Financial 
Services Manager 
Telephone:  01524 582018 / 582138 
E-mail: rbailey@lancaster.gov.uk 
aclarke@lancaster.gov.uk  
Ref: Performance Review Cycle 2013/14 Qtr 3 

 

Page 12



`
ç
êé
ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éî

áÉ
ï
 o

Éé
ç
êí

m
çê
íÑç

äáç
W ^

ää 
m
çê
íÑç

äáç
 e

çä
ÇÉ

êë
n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

P

l
ìí
Åç

ã
É

p
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

c
êÉ
èì

Éå
Åó

m
çê
íÑç

äáç
e
çä
ÇÉ

ê
m
çä
~ê
áíó

i~
íÉ
ëí
 a

~í
~ 
En

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
F

q
~ê
ÖÉ

í
^
Åí
ì~

ä
o
^
d

o
Éé

çê
í `

çã
ã
Éå

íë

`
äÉ
~å

I d
êÉ
Éå

 ~
å
Ç
 p
~Ñ
É 
m
ä~
ÅÉ

ë
få
Åç

ã
É 
ÖÉ

åÉ
ê~
íÉ
Ç

Ñê
çã

 É
åÉ

êÖ
óI

áå
Åä
ìÇ

áå
Ö 
ëç

ä~
ê

íÉ
ÅÜ

åç
äç
Öó

 ~
åÇ

Åä
áã

~í
É 
ÅÜ

~å
ÖÉ

B
 ç
Ñ Ü

çì
ëÉ

Üç
äÇ
 ï
~ë

íÉ
êÉ
ìë

ÉÇ
I ê
ÉÅ

óÅ
äÉ
Ç 
çê

Åç
ã
éç

ëí
ÉÇ

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

a
~î

áÇ
 p
ã
áíÜ

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

QM
KM
MB

QS
KQ
MB

d
êÉ
Éå

q
Üá
ë 
èì

~ê
íÉ
ê 
ë~

ï
 ~
 Ñì

êí
ÜÉ

ê 
áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 áå

 íÜ
É

~ã
çì

åí
 ç
Ñ Ü

çì
ëÉ

Üç
äÇ
 ï
~ë

íÉ
 Ä
Éá
åÖ

 ê
Éì

ëÉ
ÇI

êÉ
Åó
äÉ
Ç 
çê
 Å
çã

éç
ëí
ÉÇ

K q
Üá
ë 
ÇÉ

ã
çå

ëí
ê~
íÉ
ë 
~

éç
ëá
íáî
É 
êÉ
ëì

äí 
~í
 ~
 íá
ã
É 
ï
ÜÉ

å 
å~

íáç
å~

ääó
 íÜ

É
çî

Éê
~ä
ä í
êÉ
åÇ

 áë
 Ç
çï

åï
~ê
Çë

éê
çà
ÉÅ

íë
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 áå

Åç
ã
É 
Ñê
çã

Éå
Éê
Öó

 ~
åÇ

 ê
ÉÅ

óÅ
äáå

Ö
éê
çà
ÉÅ

íë

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

q
áã

e
~ã

áäí
çå

J`
çñ

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

>
QQ

IM
MM

KM
M

>
QQ

IQ
VT

KR
M

d
êÉ
Éå

q
Üá
ë 
ã
É~

ëì
êÉ
 ë
Üç

ï
ë 
íÜ
É 
Åì

ã
ìä
~í
áî
É 
áå
Åç

ã
É

ÖÉ
åÉ

ê~
íÉ
Ç 
Ñê
çã

 é
Üç

íç
îç

äí~
áÅ
 áå

ëí
~ä
ä~
íáç

åë
 ~
í

Åç
ìå

Åá
ä ã

ìå
áÅ
áé
~ä
 Ä
ìá
äÇ
áå
Öë

K
l
ìê
 Ç
áë
íê
áÅ
í á
ë 
ë~

ÑÉ
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ

Çá
îÉ

êë
áç
å~

êó
 ~
Åí
áî
áíá
Éë

Ñç
ê 
óç

ìå
Ö 
éÉ

çé
äÉ

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

o
çå

 p
~å

Çë
e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

PI
NO

M
QI
TM

Q
d
êÉ
Éå

^
 å
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 Ç
áî
Éê
ëá
çå

~ê
ó 
~Å

íáî
áíá
Éë

 Ü
~î

É
ÄÉ

Éå
 é
êç
îá
ÇÉ

Ç 
Ñç
ê 
óç

ìå
Ö 
éÉ

çé
äÉ
 Ç
ìê
áå
Ö

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 áå

Åä
ìÇ

áå
Ö 
k
~í
áç
å~

ä m
ä~
ó 
a
~ó

 ~
åÇ

íÜ
É 
éê
çî

áë
áç
å 
çÑ
 >
N 
ëï

áã
ã
áå
Ö 
~í
 p
^
p
`
 íÜ

~í
ï
~ë

 î
Éê
ó 
éç

éì
ä~
ê

j
çå

 c
ÉÄ

 O
Q 
NQ

WN
OW
QT

 O
MN

Q
m
~Ö

É 
N 
çÑ
 Q

!
""
#$
%&
'(
!

Page 13



`
ç
êé
ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éî

áÉ
ï
 o
Éé

ç
êí

m
çê
íÑç

äáç
W ^

ää 
m
çê
íÑç

äáç
 e

çä
ÇÉ

êë
n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

P

l
ìí
Åç

ã
É

p
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

c
êÉ
èì

Éå
Åó

m
çê
íÑç

äáç
e
çä
ÇÉ

ê
m
çä
~ê
áíó

i~
íÉ
ëí
 a

~í
~ 
En

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
F

q
~ê
ÖÉ

í
^
Åí
ì~

ä
o
^
d

o
Éé

çê
í `

çã
ã
Éå

íë

`
ç
ã
ã
ì
å
áí
ó 
i
É~

Ç
Éê
ëÜ

áé
`
çì

åÅ
áäD
ë 
çé

Éê
~í
áç
åë

~ê
É 
ÇÉ

äáî
Éê
ÉÇ

 ~
åÇ

`
çì

åÅ
áä 
q
~ñ

 ~
ë 
~ 
B
 ç
Ñ

`
çì

åÅ
áä 
q
~ñ

 Ç
ìÉ

j
çå

íÜ
äó

^
ÄÄ

çí
í _

êó
åá
åÖ

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

OU
KM
MB

OT
KU
MB

^
ã
ÄÉ

ê
q
ÜÉ

 B
 ~
ã
çì

åí
 ç
Ñ `

çì
åÅ

áä 
q
~ñ

 Å
çä
äÉ
Åí
ÉÇ

êÉ
ã
~á
åë

 Ä
êç
~Ç

äó
 áå

 äá
åÉ

 ï
áíÜ

 É
ñé

ÉÅ
í~
íáç

åë
K

ã
~å

~Ö
ÉÇ

 É
ÑÑá
Åá
Éå

íäó
~å

Ç 
ÉÑ
ÑÉ
Åí
áî
Éä
ó 
íç

~Å
Üá
Éî

É 
ÄÉ

ííÉ
ê 
î~

äì
É

Ñç
ê 
ã
çå

Éó

k
çå

Ja
çã

Éë
íáÅ

 ê
~í
Éë

~ë
 ~
 B

 ç
Ñ

k
çå

Ja
çã

Éë
íáÅ

 ê
~í
Éë

Çì
É

j
çå

íÜ
äó

^
ÄÄ

çí
í _

êó
åá
åÖ

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

OU
KS
MB

OU
KS
MB

d
êÉ
Éå

q
ÜÉ

 B
 ~
ã
çì

åí
 ç
Ñ å

çå
JÇ
çã

Éë
íáÅ

 ê
~í
Éë

Åç
ääÉ

Åí
ÉÇ

 áë
 Ä
êç
~Ç

äó
 áå

 äá
åÉ

 ï
áíÜ

 É
ñé

ÉÅ
í~
íáç

åë
~í
 íÜ

É 
Éå

Ç 
çÑ
 n

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
K

o
çÄ

ìë
í ~

åÇ
 íÉ

ëí
ÉÇ

~ê
ê~
åÖ

Éã
Éå

íë
 ~
êÉ
 áå

éä
~Å

É 
Ñç
ê 
Éã

Éê
ÖÉ

åÅ
ó

éä
~å

åá
åÖ

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

h
~ê
Éå

 i
Éó

íÜ
~ã

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

l
å 
í~
êÖ
Éí

l
å 
í~
êÖ
Éí

d
êÉ
Éå

a
ìê
áå
Ö 
íÜ
áë
 è
ì~

êí
Éê
 É
ñÅ

Éê
Åá
ëÉ

ë 
íÉ
ëí
áå
Ö 
íÜ
É

q
ê~
ÇÉ

ÄÉ
 `

ÜÉ
ã
áÅ
~ä
ë 
~å

Ç 
i~

åÅ
~ë

íÉ
ê 
a
áë
íê
áÅ
í

c
äç
çÇ

áå
Ö 
Éã

Éê
ÖÉ

åÅ
ó 
éä
~å

ë 
ï
Éê
É 
ìå

ÇÉ
êí
~â

Éå
K

q
ÜÉ

 c
äç
çÇ

áå
Ö 
m
ä~
å 
ÄÉ

áå
Ö 
~Å

íáî
~í
ÉÇ

 Ñç
ê 
íáÇ

~ä
Ñäç

çÇ
áå
Ö 
~í
 j

çê
ÉÅ

~ã
ÄÉ

 ~
åÇ

 p
ìå

ÇÉ
êä~

åÇ
m
çá
åí
K  
q
ÜÉ

ëÉ
 ã

~à
çê
 É
ñÅ

Éê
Åá
ëÉ

ë 
éê
çî

áÇ
ÉÇ

ìë
ÉÑ
ìä
 íê
~á
åá
åÖ

 ç
éé

çê
íì
åá
íáÉ

ë 
Ñç
ê 
~ 
ä~
êÖ
É

åì
ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 Å
çì

åÅ
áä 
ëí
~Ñ
ÑK

`
äÉ
~å

 Ä
áää
 ç
Ñ Ü

É~
äíÜ

Öá
îÉ

å 
íÜ
êç
ìÖ

Ü 
~å

åì
~ä

Öç
îÉ

êå
~å

ÅÉ
 ~
åÇ

 ~
ìÇ

áí
êÉ
îÉ

áï
ë

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

b
áäÉ

Éå
 _
ä~
ã
áêÉ

iç
ï
 áë

 d
çç

Ç
MK
MM

MK
RM

^
ã
ÄÉ

ê
o
Éè

ìá
êÉ
ã
Éå

íë
 áå

 ê
Éä
~í
áç
å 
íç
 íÜ

É
d
çî

Éê
åã

Éå
íDë
 m
ìÄ

äáÅ
 p
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

ë 
k
Éí
ï
çê
â

Åç
åí
áå
ìÉ

 íç
 Å
Ü~

åÖ
ÉK
  ^

 å
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 ~
Åí
áç
åë

Ü~
îÉ

 Ä
ÉÉ

å 
í~
âÉ

å 
áå
 ê
Éë

éç
åë

É 
íç
 ê
ÉÅ

Éå
íäó

áÇ
Éå

íáÑ
áÉ
Ç 
fq
 ë
ÉÅ

ìê
áíó
 áë

ëì
Éë

 ~
åÇ

 ~
éê
çÖ

ê~
ã
ã
É 
áë
 Ä
Éá
åÖ

 Ç
Éî

Éä
çé

ÉÇ
 íç

 ~
ÇÇ

êÉ
ëë

çå
Öç

áå
Ö 
f`

q
 ~
åÇ

 íÜ
É 
ï
áÇ
Éê
 áå

Ñç
êã

~í
áç
å

Öç
îÉ

êå
~å

ÅÉ
 áë

ëì
Éë

K

j
çå

 c
ÉÄ

 O
Q 
NQ

WN
OW
QT

 O
MN

Q
m
~Ö

É 
O 
çÑ
 Q

Page 14



`
ç
êé
ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éî

áÉ
ï
 o
Éé

ç
êí

m
çê
íÑç

äáç
W ^

ää 
m
çê
íÑç

äáç
 e

çä
ÇÉ

êë
n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

P

l
ìí
Åç

ã
É

p
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

c
êÉ
èì

Éå
Åó

m
çê
íÑç

äáç
e
çä
ÇÉ

ê
m
çä
~ê
áíó

i~
íÉ
ëí
 a

~í
~ 
En

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
F

q
~ê
ÖÉ

í
^
Åí
ì~

ä
o
^
d

o
Éé

çê
í `

çã
ã
Éå

íë

b
Åç

å
ç
ã
áÅ
 d

êç
ï
íÜ

i~
åÅ

~ë
íÉ
ê 
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

íDë
êÉ
Åç

Öå
áíá
çå

 ~
ë 
~

îá
ëá
íç
ê 
ÇÉ

ëí
áå
~í
çå

 áë
Éå

Ü~
åÅ

ÉÇ

^
 Ñì

íì
êÉ
 ~
éé

êç
~Å

Ü 
Ñç
ê

íÜ
É 
éê
çî

áë
áç
å 
çÑ
 ~

j
ìë

Éì
ã
ë 
ëÉ

êî
áÅ
É 
áë
 áå

éä
~Å

É 
~å

Ç 
ï
çê
âá
åÖ

ÉÑ
ÑÉ
Åí
áî
Éä
ó

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

o
çå

 p
~å

Çë
e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

l
å 
í~
êÖ
Éí

l
å 
í~
êÖ
Éí

d
êÉ
Éå

m
êç
éç

ë~
äë
 Ñç

ê 
~ 
ëÜ

~ê
ÉÇ

 ë
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

 ï
áíÜ

i~
åÅ

~ë
Üá
êÉ
 `

çì
åí
ó 
`
çì

åÅ
áä 
~å

Ç 
m
êÉ
ëí
çå

 `
áíó

`
çì

åÅ
áä 
Ñç
ê 
íÜ
É 
Ñì
íì
êÉ
 ã

~å
~Ö

Éã
Éå

í ç
Ñ í
ÜÉ

j
ìë

Éì
ã
ë 
p
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

 Å
çå

íáå
ìÉ

 íç
 Ä
É 
ÇÉ

îÉ
äç
éÉ

ÇK
 få

 n
íê
 P
 ~
 ï
çê
âë

Üç
é 
Ñ~
Åá
äáí
~í
ÉÇ

 Ä
ó 
íÜ
É 
iç

Å~
ä

d
çî

Éê
åã

Éå
í ^

ëë
çÅ

á~
íáç

å 
íÉ
ëí
ÉÇ

 íÜ
É

ÑÉ
~ë

áÄ
áäá
íó
 ç
Ñ í
ÜÉ

 é
êç
éç

ë~
äë
 Ñç

ê 
Åç

åë
áÇ
Éê
~í
áç
å

Äó
 `

~Ä
áå
Éí
 áå

 g
~å

ì~
êó
 O
MN

Q
iç

Å~
ä ~

ìí
Üç

êáí
ó

é~
êí
åÉ

êë
 ï
çê
âá
åÖ

íç
ÖÉ

íÜ
Éê
 íç

 Ç
Éî

Éä
çé

éä
~å

ë 
Ñç
ê 
ÉÅ

çå
çã

áÅ

j
~à
çê
 d

çî
Éê
åã

Éå
í

í~
êÖ
Éí
ë 
Ñç
ê 
ÇÉ

íÉ
êã

áå
áå
Ö

j
~à
çê
 m
ä~
åå

áå
Ö

^
éé

äáÅ
~í
áç
åë

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

g~
åá
ÅÉ

 e
~å

ëç
å

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

RM
KM
MB

RS
KM
MB

d
êÉ
Éå

q
ÜÉ

 é
Éê
ÅÉ

åí
~Ö

É 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 ã

~à
çê
 é
ä~
åå

áå
Ö

~é
éä
áÅ
~í
áç
åë

 Ç
Éí
Éê
ã
áå
ÉÇ

 ï
áíÜ

áå
 ë
í~
íì
íç
êó

ÇÉ
~Ç

äáå
Éë

 Å
çå

íáå
ìÉ

ë 
íç
 Ñ~

îç
ìê
~Ä

äó
 É
ñÅ

ÉÉ
Ç

íÜ
É 
d
çî

Éê
åã

Éå
í ë

Éí
 í~

êÖ
Éí
 E
PM

B
F

Öê
çï

íÜ
 ~
äáÖ

åÉ
Ç 
íç

å~
íáç

å~
ääó
 áã

éç
êí
~å

í
Éå

Éê
Öó

 ~
åÇ

 e
Éó

ëÜ
~ã

j
S 
íê
~å

ëé
çê
í ä
áå
âë

j
~à
çê
 d

çî
Éê
åã

Éå
í

í~
êÖ
Éí
ë 
Ñç
ê 
p
éÉ

Åá
~ä

ã
É~

ëì
êÉ
ë 
çå

 j
~à
çê

^
éé

É~
äë

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

g~
åá
ÅÉ

 e
~å

ëç
å

iç
ï
 áë

 d
çç

Ç
NM

KM
MB

PK
MM

B
d
êÉ
Éå

q
Üá
ë 
áë
 ~
 ã

É~
ëì

êÉ
 ç
Ñ í
ÜÉ

 ~
îÉ

ê~
ÖÉ

éÉ
êÅ
Éå

í~
ÖÉ

 ç
Ñ Ç

ÉÅ
áë
áç
åë

 ç
å 
ã
~à
çê

ÇÉ
îÉ

äç
éã

Éå
í ~

éé
äáÅ
~í
áç
åë

 íÜ
~í
 Ü
~î

É 
ÄÉ

Éå
çî

Éê
íì
êå
ÉÇ

 ~
í ~

éé
É~

äK 
 q
ÜÉ

 Å
çì

åÅ
áäD
ë

éÉ
êÑ
çê
ã
~å

ÅÉ
 áë

 ë
áÖ
åá
ÑáÅ

~å
íäó
 Ä
Éí
íÉ
ê 
íÜ
~å

 íÜ
É

í~
êÖ
Éí
 ë
Éí
 Ä
ó 
d
çî

Éê
ã
Éå

í E
OM

B
F

j
çê
É 
íç
ìê
áë
íë
 Å
çã

áå
Ö

íç
 íÜ

É 
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í ~
åÇ

íç
ìê
áë
í á
åÅ

çã
É 
áë

ã
~ñ

áã
áë
ÉÇ

k
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 é
Éç

éä
É

é~
êí
áÅ
áé
~í
áå
Ö 
áå
 ~
êí
ëI

Åì
äíì

êÉ
I É

åí
Éê
í~
áå
ã
Éå

í
~å

Ç 
Åç

ã
ã
ìå

áíó
 É
îÉ

åí
ë

áå
 íÜ

É 
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

o
çå

 p
~å

Çë
e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

NU
IM
MM

PR
IV
SM

d
êÉ
Éå

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 ë
~ï

 ~
 ë
áÖ
åá
ÑáÅ

~å
í á
åÅ

êÉ
~ë

É 
áå

~Ç
ã
áë
ëá
çå

ë 
~í
 íÜ

É 
`
áíó
 j

ìë
Éì

ã
 ï
áíÜ

 ~
 Ü
áÖ
Ü

äÉ
îÉ

ä ç
Ñ á
åí
Éê
Éë

í á
å 
íÜ
É 
?p

áäî
Éê
Ç~

äÉ
 e

çê
ÇÉ

?
b
ñÜ

áÄ
áíá
çå

K  
q
ÜÉ

êÉ
 ï
~ë

 ~
äë
ç 
~ 
Üá
ÖÜ

Éê
 íÜ

~å
Éñ

éÉ
Åí
ÉÇ

 áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 áå

 íÜ
É 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 é
Éç

éä
É

~í
íÉ
åÇ

áå
Ö 
~Å

íî
áíá
Éë

 ~
í q

ÜÉ
 m
ä~
íÑç

êã
q
ÜÉ

 ~
ííê
~Å

íáî
Éå

Éë
ë 
çÑ

íÜ
É 
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í ~
ë 
~ 
éä
~Å

É
íç
 î
áë
áí 
~å

Ç 
áå
îÉ

ëí
 áå

áë
 áã

éê
çî

ÉÇ

k
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 Ü
Éê
áí~

ÖÉ
~ë

ëÉ
íë
 áã

éê
çî

ÉÇ
n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

g~
åá
ÅÉ

 e
~å

ëç
å

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

OM
OQ

d
êÉ
Éå

j
É~

ëì
êÉ
 ë
Üç

ï
ë 
íÜ
É 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 i
áë
íÉ
Ç

_
ìá
äÇ
áå
Ö 
^
éé

äáÅ
~í
áç
åë

 ~
éé

êç
îÉ

Ç 
EÉ
ñÅ

äì
Çá
åÖ

ÇÉ
ã
çä
áíá
çå

ëF
 íÜ

~í
 ~
êÉ
 äá
âÉ

äó
 íç

 ê
Éë

ìä
í á
å 
íÜ
É

~ë
ëÉ

í Ä
Éá
åÖ

 É
åÜ

~å
ÅÉ

Ç

j
çå

 c
ÉÄ

 O
Q 
NQ

WN
OW
QT

 O
MN

Q
m
~Ö

É 
P 
çÑ
 Q

Page 15



`
ç
êé
ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 o
Éî

áÉ
ï
 o
Éé

ç
êí

m
çê
íÑç

äáç
W ^

ää 
m
çê
íÑç

äáç
 e

çä
ÇÉ

êë
n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

P

l
ìí
Åç

ã
É

p
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë

 j
É~

ëì
êÉ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

c
êÉ
èì

Éå
Åó

m
çê
íÑç

äáç
e
çä
ÇÉ

ê
m
çä
~ê
áíó

i~
íÉ
ëí
 a

~í
~ 
En

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
F

q
~ê
ÖÉ

í
^
Åí
ì~

ä
o
^
d

o
Éé

çê
í `

çã
ã
Éå

íë

e
É~

äí
Ü
 C

 t
Éä
äÄ
Éá
å
Ö

b
åÜ

~å
ÅÉ

Ç 
èì

~ä
áíó
 ç
Ñ

äáÑ
É 
çÑ
 äç

Å~
ä ê
Éë

áÇ
Éå

íë
íÜ
êç
ìÖ

Ü 
~Å

ÅÉ
ëë

 íç
Öç

çÇ
 è
ì~

äáí
ó 
Üç

ìë
áå
Ö

k
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 áã

éê
çî

ÉÇ
Üç

ã
Éë

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

h
~ê
Éå

 i
Éó

íÜ
~ã

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

QP
U

QU
M

d
êÉ
Éå

q
Üá
ë 
ã
É~

ëì
êÉ
 áå

Çá
Å~

íÉ
ë 
íÜ
É 
Åç

ìå
Åá
äDë

éÉ
êÑ
çê
ã
~å

ÅÉ
 áå

 É
åë

ìê
áå
Ö 
íÜ
~í
 ç
ï
åÉ

ê
çÅ

Åì
éá
ÉÇ

 ~
åÇ

 é
êáî

~í
É 
êÉ
åí
ÉÇ

 Ü
çã

Éë
 ~
êÉ

áã
éê
çî

ÉÇ
 ë
ç 
~ë

 íç
 É
åÜ

~å
ÅÉ

 íÜ
É 
èì

~ä
áíó
 ç
Ñ ä
áÑÉ

çÑ
 íÜ

Éá
ê 
çÅ

Åì
é~

åí
ëK
 m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 ~
ë 
~í

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 áå

Çá
Å~

íÉ
ë 
íÜ
É 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 Ü
çã

Éë
íÜ
~í
 Ü
~î

É 
ÄÉ

Éå
 áã

éê
çî

ÉÇ
 íÜ

êç
ìÖ

Ü 
íÜ
É

Åç
ìå

Åá
äDë
 áå

íÉ
êî
Éå

íáç
å

e
É~

äíÜ
 ~
åÇ

 ï
Éä
äÄ
Éá
åÖ

áã
éê
çî

ÉÇ
 ~
åÇ

ã
çê
í~
äáí
ó 
ê~
íÉ
ë

êÉ
Çì

ÅÉ
Ç 
Ñç
ê

îì
äå
Éê
~Ä

äÉ
 é
Éç

éä
É 
áå

íÜ
É 
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í

o
ÉÇ

ìÅ
íáç

å 
áå
 å
ìã

ÄÉ
ê

çÑ
 Ü
çã

Éä
Éë

ë 
éÉ

çé
äÉ
 áå

íÜ
É 
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

h
~ê
Éå

 i
Éó

íÜ
~ã

iç
ï
 áë

 d
çç

Ç
PM

OR
d
êÉ
Éå

j
É~

ëì
êÉ
 áå

Çá
Å~

íÉ
ë 
íÜ
É 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 áå

Çá
îá
Çì

~ä
ë

~Å
ÅÉ

éí
ÉÇ

 ~
ë 
Dë
í~
íì
íç
êó
 Ü
çã

Éä
Éë

ëD
 áå

 n
ì~

êí
Éê

PK
  l

îÉ
ê~
ääI
 íÜ

É 
Åì

êê
Éå

í Ç
áÑÑ
áÅ
ìä
í É

Åç
åç

ã
áÅ

Åä
áã

~í
É 
áë
 Ü
~î

áå
Ö 
~ 
åÉ

Ö~
íáî
É 
áã

é~
Åí
 ç
å 
íÜ
É

åì
ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 é
Éç

éä
É 
ï
Üç

 Ñá
åÇ

 íÜ
Éã

ëÉ
äî
Éë

Üç
ã
Éä
Éë

ë
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ

îì
äå
Éê
~Ä

äÉ
 Ü
çì

ëÉ
Üç

äÇ
ë

ÄÉ
åÉ

Ñáí
áå
Ö 
Ñê
çã

 t
~ê
ã

e
çã

Éë
 áå

áíá
~í
áî
Éë

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

h
~ê
Éå

 i
Éó

íÜ
~ã

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

NT
R

PO
N

d
êÉ
Éå

j
É~

ëì
êÉ
 áå

Çá
Å~

íÉ
ë 
~å

 áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ

Üç
ìë

ÉÜ
çä
Çë

 ê
ÉÅ

Éá
îÉ

Ç 
t

~ê
ã
 e

çã
Éë

~ë
ëá
ëí
~å

ÅÉ
 íÜ

êç
ìÖ

Ü 
íÜ
É 
e
çã

É 
fã

éê
çî

Éã
Éå

í
^
ÖÉ

åÅ
óI
 e

çì
ëá
åÖ

 p
í~
åÇ

~ê
Çë

 ~
åÇ

 t
~ê
ã

e
çã

Éë
 e

É~
äíÜ

ó 
m
Éç

éä
É 
éê
çà
ÉÅ

í á
å 
n
íê
 P

q
ÜÉ

 Ü
É~

äíÜ
 ~
åÇ

ï
Éä
äÄ
Éá
åÖ

 ç
Ñ ä
çÅ

~ä
êÉ
ëá
ÇÉ

åí
ë 
çÑ
 ~
ää 
~Ö

Éë
áë
 áã

éê
çî

ÉÇ
 Ä
ó

é~
êí
áÅ
áé
~í
áç
å 
áå
 ë
éç

êí
ë

~å
Ç 
äÉ
áë
ìê
É 
~Å

íáî
áíá
Éë

få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ

éÉ
çé

äÉ
 é
~ê
íáÅ

áé
~í
áå
Ö 
áå

ëé
çê
íë
 ~
åÇ

 äÉ
áë
ìê
É

~Å
íáî
áíá
Éë

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó

o
çå

 p
~å

Çë
e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 d

çç
Ç

SM
IM
MP

NS
PI
NN

Q
d
êÉ
Éå

j
É~

ëì
êÉ
 áå

Çá
Å~

íÉ
ë 
íÜ
É 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 é
Éç

éä
É

é~
êí
áÅ
áé
~í
áå
Ö 
áå
 ë
éç

êí
ë 
~å

Ç 
äÉ
áë
ìê
É 
~Å

íáî
áíá
Éë

êì
å 
Äó

 íÜ
É 
Åç

ìå
Åá
ä á
å 
ëÅ

Üç
çä
ë 
~å

Ç 
~í
 Å
çì

åÅ
áä

Ñ~
Åá
äáí
áÉ
ëK
  q

ÜÉ
 ã

É~
ëì

êÉ
 Ü
~ë

 Ä
ÉÉ

å 
ÇÉ

îÉ
äç
éÉ

Ç
Çì

êáå
Ö 
OM

NP
LN
Q 
ï
áíÜ

 ~
 î
áÉ
ï
 íç

 é
êç
îá
Çá
åÖ

 Ç
~í
~

Öç
áå
Ö 
Ñç
êï

~ê
Ç 
íÜ
~í
 ï
áää
 áå

Ñç
êã

 Ñì
íì
êÉ
 Ç
ÉÅ

áë
áç
å

ã
~â

áå
Ö

j
çå

 c
ÉÄ

 O
Q 
NQ

WN
OW
QT

 O
MN

Q
m
~Ö

É 
Q 
çÑ
 Q

Page 16



`
ç
êé

ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 n

ì
~ê
íÉ
êä
ó 
q
êÉ
å
Ç
 o

Éé
ç
êí

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

PL
OM

NQ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ
 få

Ñç
êã

~í
áç
å

l
ì
íÅ
ç
ã
É

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

m
ç
ä~
êá
íó

n
ì
~ê
íÉ
ê 
P

OM
NO

LO
MN

P

^
Åí
ì
~ä

n
ì
~ê
íÉ
ê 
Q

OM
NO

LO
MN

P

^
Åí
ì
~ä

q
êÉ
å
Ç

n
ì
~ê
íÉ
ê 
N

OM
NP

LO
MN

Q

^
Åí
ì
~ä

q
êÉ
å
Ç

n
ì
~ê
íÉ
ê 
O

OM
NP

LO
MN

Q

^
Åí
ì
~ä

q
êÉ
å
Ç

n
ì
~ê
íÉ
ê 
P

OM
NP

LO
MN

Q

^
Åí
ì
~ä

q
êÉ
å
Ç

`
ç
ã
ã
Éå

íë

`
äÉ
~å

I d
êÉ
Éå

 ~
å
Ç
 p
~Ñ
É 
m
ä~
ÅÉ

ë
få
Åç

ã
É 
ÖÉ

åÉ
ê~
íÉ
Ç

Ñê
çã

 É
åÉ

êÖ
óI

áå
Åä
ìÇ

áå
Ö 
ëç

ä~
ê

íÉ
ÅÜ

åç
äç
Öó

 ~
åÇ

Åä
áã

~í
É 
ÅÜ

~å
ÖÉ

éê
çà
ÉÅ

íë

B
 ç
Ñ Ü

çì
ëÉ

Üç
äÇ

ï
~ë

íÉ
 ê
Éì

ëÉ
ÇI

êÉ
Åó
Åä
ÉÇ

 ç
ê

Åç
ã
éç

ëí
ÉÇ

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 Ö
çç

Ç
QQ

KU
MB

QO
KO
MB

Eo
ÉÇ

F
QM

KU
MB

Eo
ÉÇ

F
QR

KS
MB

Ed
êÉ
Éå

F
QS

KQ
MB

Ed
êÉ
Éå

F
q
ÜÉ

 ~
îÉ

ê~
ÖÉ

 é
Éê
ÅÉ

åí
~Ö

É 
~ã

çì
åí
 ç
Ñ Ü

çì
ëÉ

Üç
äÇ
 ï
~ë

íÉ
êÉ
ìë

ÉÇ
I ê
ÉÅ

óÅ
äÉ
Ç 
~å

Ç 
Åç

ã
éç

ëí
ÉÇ

 Ü
~ë

 ë
íÉ
~Ç

áäó
áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç 
áå
 n

ì~
êí
Éê
ë 
O 
~å

Ç 
PK
  ^

í ~
 íá
ã
É 
ï
ÜÉ

å
å~

íáç
å~

ääó
 íÜ

É 
çî

Éê
~ä
ä í
êÉ
åÇ

 Ü
~ë

 Ä
ÉÉ

å 
Çç

ï
åï

~ê
Çë

I í
Üá
ë

êÉ
éê
Éë

Éå
íë
 ~
 é
çë

áíá
îÉ

 ê
Éë

ìä
íK 
q
ÜÉ

 ~
ã
çì

åí
 ç
Ñ ï

~ë
íÉ

êÉ
Åó
Åä
ÉÇ

 áå
 n

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
 áë
 ~
äã

çë
í N

B
 Ü
áÖ
ÜÉ

ê 
íÜ
~å

 Ñç
ê 
íÜ
É

ë~
ã
É 
éÉ

êáç
Ç 
áå
 O
MN

OL
NP

K
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 áå

Åç
ã
É

Ñê
çã

 É
åÉ

êÖ
ó 
~å

Ç
êÉ
Åó
Åä
áå
Ö 
éê
çà
ÉÅ

íë

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 Ö
çç

Ç
>
OV

IN
UV

KO
N

>
PN

IP
PV

KT
Q

Ed
êÉ
Éå

F
>
OM

IM
TP

KO
M

Eo
ÉÇ

F
>
PV

IO
MT

KO
Q

Ed
êÉ
Éå

F
>
QQ

IQ
VT

KR
M

Ed
êÉ
Éå

F
j
É~

ëì
êÉ
 áå

Çá
Å~

íÉ
ë 
íÜ
É 
Åì

ã
ìä
~í
áî
É 
íç
í~
ä ç

Ñ á
åÅ

çã
É

ÖÉ
åÉ

ê~
íÉ
Ç 
Ñê
çã

 é
Üç

íç
îç

äí~
áÅ
 áå

ëí
~ä
ä~
íáç

åë
 ~
í ã

ìå
áÅ
áé
~ä

Äì
áäÇ
áå
Öë

K  
^
ë 
Éñ

éÉ
Åí
ÉÇ

 íÜ
É 
Å~

ëÜ
 Ö
Éå

Éê
~í
ÉÇ

 áå
 n

ì~
êí
Éê

P 
áë
 äÉ

ëë
 íÜ

~å
 íÜ

É 
éê
Éî

áç
ìë

 è
ì~

êí
Éê
ë 
ÄÉ

Å~
ìë

É 
çÑ

ëÉ
~ë

çå
~ä
 Ñä
ìÅ

íì
~í
áç
åë

K  
t
ÜÉ

å 
Åç

ã
é~

êÉ
Ç 
íç
 íÜ

É 
ë~

ã
É

éÉ
êáç

Ç 
áå
 O
MN

OL
NP

 áå
Åç

ã
É 
ÖÉ

åÉ
ê~
íÉ
Ç 
áë
 ë
áÖ
åá
ÑáÅ
~å

íäó
Üá
ÖÜ

Éê
E>
NR

IP
MU

F 
ÜÉ

äé
ÉÇ

 Ä
ó 
íÜ
É 
ëç

ä~
ê 
é~

åÉ
äë
 ~
í p

^
p
`

åç
ï
 Ä
Éá
åÖ

 áå
 ì
ëÉ

K
l
ìê
 Ç
áë
íê
áÅ
í á
ë 
ë~

ÑÉ
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ

Çá
îÉ

êë
áç
å~

êó
~Å

íáî
áíá
Éë

 Ñç
ê 
óç

ìå
Ö

éÉ
çé

äÉ

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 Ö
çç

Ç
M

M
OI
NQ

S
Ed

êÉ
Éå

F
SI
UT

M
Ed

êÉ
Éå

F
QI
TM

Q
Eo

ÉÇ
F

t
Üá
äë
í í
ÜÉ

 ç
îÉ

ê~
ää 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 ó
çì

åÖ
 é
Éç

éä
É 
é~

êí
áÅ
é~

íáå
Ö

áå
 Ç
áî
Éê
ëá
çå

~ê
ó 
~Å

íáî
áíá
Éë

 Ü
~ë

 ê
ÉÇ

ìÅ
ÉÇ

 Ñê
çã

 íÜ
É 
éê
Éî

áç
ìë

èì
~ê
íÉ
ê 
íÜ
áë
 áë
 ê
ÉÑ
äÉ
Åí
áî
É 
çÑ
 ë
É~

ëç
å~

ä î
~ê
á~
íáç

åë
K

k
Éî

Éê
íÜ
Éä
Éë

ëI
 íÜ

Éë
É 
~ê
É 
ëá
Öå

áÑá
Å~

åí
äó
 Ü
áÖ
ÜÉ

ê 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

êë
íÜ
~å

 É
ñé

ÉÅ
íÉ
Ç 
~ë

 ~
 ê
Éë

ìä
í ç

Ñ ~
 ë
ìÅ

ÅÉ
ëë
Ñì
ä k

~í
áç
å~

ä m
ä~
ó

a
~ó

 É
îÉ

åí
 ~
åÇ

 ~
 Ü
áÖ
Ü 
í~
âÉ

Jì
é 
çÑ
 íÜ

É 
>
N 
ëï

áã
 ç
ÑÑÉ

ê
Çì

êáå
Ö 
a
ÉÅ

Éã
ÄÉ

êK
  q

Üá
ë 
áë
 ~
 å
Éï

 Å
çê
éç

ê~
íÉ
 é
ä~
å

ã
É~

ëì
êÉ
 áå

 O
MN

PL
NQ

I ~
ë 
Ç~

í~
 Å
çå

íáå
ìÉ

ë 
íç
 Ä
É 
éê
çî

áÇ
ÉÇ

áí 
ï
áää
 Ä
É 
éç

ëë
áÄ
äÉ
 íç

 Å
çã

é~
êÉ
 ó
É~

êJ
çå

Jó
É~

ê 
íê
Éå

Çë
K

`
ç
ã
ã
ì
å
áí
ó 
i
É~

Ç
Éê
ëÜ

áé
`
çì

åÅ
áäD
ë 
çé

Éê
~í
áç
åë

~ê
É 
ÇÉ

äáî
Éê
ÉÇ

 ~
åÇ

ã
~å

~Ö
ÉÇ

 É
ÑÑá
Åá
Éå

íäó
~å

Ç 
ÉÑ
ÑÉ
Åí
áî
Éä
ó 
íç

~Å
Üá
Éî

É 
ÄÉ

ííÉ
ê 
î~

äì
É

`
çì

åÅ
áä 
q
~ñ

 ~
ë 
~ 
B

çÑ
 `
çì

åÅ
áä 
q
~ñ

 Ç
ìÉ

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 Ö
çç

Ç
OT

KV
MB

NN
KO
MB

Eo
ÉÇ

F
OV

KT
MB

Ed
êÉ
Éå

F
OT

KU
MB

Eo
ÉÇ

F
OT

KU
MB

q
ÜÉ

 B
 ~
ã
çì

åí
 ç
Ñ `

çì
åÅ

áä 
q
~ñ

 Å
çä
äÉ
Åí
ÉÇ

 ~
í n

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
 áë

íÜ
É 
ë~

ã
É 
~ë

 ~
í n

ì~
êí
Éê
 O
 ~
åÇ

 ë
äáÖ
Üí
äó
 Ç
çï

å 
çå

 ë
~ã

É
éÉ

êáç
Ç 
áå
 O
MN

OL
NP

K  
q
ÜÉ

 ç
îÉ

ê 
Åç

ääÉ
Åí
áç
å 
íç
 Ç
~í
ÉI

Üç
ï
Éî

Éê
I ê
Éã

~á
åë

 Ä
êç
~Ç

äó
 áå

 äá
åÉ

 ï
áíÜ

 É
ñé

ÉÅ
í~
íáç

åë
EU
RK
PM

B
 ~
ë 
~í
 n

íê
 P
FK

Ñç
ê 
ã
çå

Éó
k
çå

Ja
çã

Éë
íáÅ
 ê
~í
Éë

~ë
 ~
 B

 ç
Ñ

k
çå

Ja
çã

Éë
íáÅ
 ê
~í
Éë

Çì
É

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 Ö
çç

Ç
OU

KQ
MB

NM
KO
MB

Eo
ÉÇ

F
PM

KT
MB

Ed
êÉ
Éå

F
OV

KS
MB

Eo
ÉÇ

F
OU

KS
MB

Eo
ÉÇ

F
q
ÜÉ

 B
 ~
ã
çì

åí
 ç
Ñ å

çå
JÇ
çã

Éë
íáÅ
 ê
~í
Éë

 Å
çä
äÉ
Åí
ÉÇ

 íç
 Ç
~í
É

áë
 Ä
êç
~Ç

äó
 áå

 äá
åÉ

 ï
áíÜ

 É
ñé

ÉÅ
í~
íáç

åë
 ~
í í
ÜÉ

 É
åÇ

 ç
Ñ

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 E
UU

KV
MB

FK
  j

çå
íÜ
äó
 Å
çä
äÉ
Åí
áç
å 
ê~
íÉ
 Å
~å

 î
~ê
ó

Çì
êáå

Ö 
íÜ
É 
óÉ

~ê
 Ä
ìí
 Å
çã

é~
êÉ
Ç 
ï
áíÜ

 n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 áå

OM
NO

LN
P 
íÜ
É 
ê~
íÉ
 ç
Ñ Å

çä
äÉ
Åí
áç
å 
áë
 Å
ìê
êÉ
åí
äó
 Ü
áÖ
ÜÉ

êK
b
ñé

ÉÅ
íÉ
Ç 
Åç

ääÉ
Åí
áç
å 
~í
 ó
É~

ê 
Éå

Ç 
êÉ
ã
~á
åë

 ç
å 
Åç

ìê
ëÉ

 íç
ÄÉ

 ~
ÅÜ

áÉ
îÉ

ÇK
o
çÄ

ìë
í ~

åÇ
 íÉ

ëí
ÉÇ

~ê
ê~
åÖ

Éã
Éå

íë
 ~
êÉ
 áå

éä
~Å

É 
Ñç
ê 
Éã

Éê
ÖÉ

åÅ
ó

éä
~å

åá
åÖ

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 Ö
çç

Ç
l
å 
í~
êÖ
Éí

l
å 
í~
êÖ
Éí

l
å 
í~
êÖ
Éí

l
å 
í~
êÖ
Éí

l
å 
í~
êÖ
Éí

n
ì~

êí
Éê
äó
 ã

áäÉ
ëí
çå

Éë
 ~
êÉ
 ë
Éí
 íÜ

êç
ìÖ

Üç
ìí
 íÜ

É 
óÉ

~ê
 íç

Éå
ëì

êÉ
 íÜ

~í
 Ä
ìë

áå
Éë

ë 
Åç

åí
áå
ìá
íó
 ~
êê
~å

ÖÉ
ã
Éå

íë
 é
êç
îá
ÇÉ

~ 
êç
Äì

ëí
 É
ã
Éê
ÖÉ

åÅ
ó 
êÉ
ëé

çå
ëÉ

K  
^
ë 
éä
~å

åÉ
Ç 
áå
 n

ì~
êí
Éê

P 
íï
ç 
ã
~à
çê
 É
ã
Éê
ÖÉ

åÅ
ó 
Éñ

Éê
Åá
ëÉ

ë 
ï
Éê
É 
ìå

ÇÉ
ê~
í~
âÉ

å
éê
çî

áÇ
áå
Ö 
ìë

ÉÑ
ìä
 íê
~á
åá
åÖ

 ç
éé

çê
íì
åá
íáÉ

ë 
Ñç
ê 
~ 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ

ëí
~Ñ
Ñ

j
çå

 c
ÉÄ

 O
Q 
NQ

WN
PW
PN

 O
MN

Q
`
çê
éç

ê~
íÉ
m
ä~
åN

PJ
NQ

N 
çÑ
 P

!
""
#$
%&
'(
)

Page 17



`
ç
êé

ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 n

ì
~ê
íÉ
êä
ó 
q
êÉ
å
Ç
 o

Éé
ç
êí

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

PL
OM

NQ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ
 få

Ñç
êã

~í
áç
å

l
ì
íÅ
ç
ã
É

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

m
ç
ä~
êá
íó

n
ì
~ê
íÉ
ê 
P

OM
NO

LO
MN

P

^
Åí
ì
~ä

n
ì
~ê
íÉ
ê 
Q

OM
NO

LO
MN

P

^
Åí
ì
~ä

q
êÉ
å
Ç

n
ì
~ê
íÉ
ê 
N

OM
NP

LO
MN

Q

^
Åí
ì
~ä

q
êÉ
å
Ç

n
ì
~ê
íÉ
ê 
O

OM
NP

LO
MN

Q

^
Åí
ì
~ä

q
êÉ
å
Ç

n
ì
~ê
íÉ
ê 
P

OM
NP

LO
MN

Q

^
Åí
ì
~ä

q
êÉ
å
Ç

`
ç
ã
ã
Éå

íë

`
ç
ã
ã
ì
å
áí
ó 
i
É~

Ç
Éê
ëÜ

áé
`
äÉ
~å

 Ä
áää
 ç
Ñ Ü

É~
äíÜ

Öá
îÉ

å 
íÜ
êç
ìÖ

Ü
~å

åì
~ä
 Ö
çî

Éê
å~

åÅ
É

~å
Ç 
~ì

Çá
í ê
Éî

Éá
ï
ë

iç
ï
 áë
 Ö
çç

Ç
MK
MM

MK
MM

NK
MM

Eo
ÉÇ

F
MK
RM

Ed
êÉ
Éå

F
MK
RM

q
ÜÉ

 Å
çì

åÅ
áä 
ëÉ

Éâ
ë 
íç
 Ç
Éã

çå
ëí
ê~
íÉ
 ~
 DÅ
äÉ
~å

 Ä
áää
 ç
Ñ Ü

É~
äíÜ

D
íÜ
êç
ìÖ

Ü 
íÜ
É 
~Ä

ëÉ
åÅ

É 
çÑ
 ~
åó

 ã
~à
çê
 Ö
çî

Éê
å~

åÅ
É 
Ñ~
áäì
êÉ
ë

çê
 ë
Üç

êí
Åç

ã
áå
Öë

K  
få
 íÜ

áë
 ó
É~

êI
 fq

 ë
ÉÅ

ìê
áíó
 áë
ëì

Éë
 Ü
~î

É
ÄÉ

Éå
 áÇ

Éå
íáÑ
áÉ
Ç 
íÜ
~í
 å
ÉÉ

Ç 
íç
 Ä
É 
~Ç

Çê
Éë

ëÉ
Ç 
áå
 ç
êÇ
Éê
 íç

ã
ÉÉ

í ê
Éè

ìá
êÉ
ã
Éå

íë
 ç
å 
áå
Ñç
êã

~í
áç
å 
Öç

îÉ
êå
~å

ÅÉ
 ~
åÇ

çí
ÜÉ

ê 
~ê
ê~
åÖ

Éã
Éå

íë
 ê
Éä
~í
áå
Ö 
íç
 íÜ

É 
d
çî

Éê
åã

Éå
í m

ìÄ
äáÅ

p
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

ë 
k
Éí
ï
çê
â 
ï
Üá
ÅÜ

 Å
çå

íáå
ìÉ

 íç
 Å
Ü~

åÖ
ÉK
  q

êÉ
åÇ

áå
Ö

áå
 n

ì~
êí
Éê
ë 
O 
~å

Ç 
P 
êÉ
ÑäÉ

Åí
ë 
íÜ
É 
çå

Öç
áå
Ö 
éç

ëá
íáî
É 
~Å

íáç
å

íÜ
~í
 áë
 Ä
Éá
åÖ

 í~
âÉ

å 
íÜ
êç
ìÖ

Ü 
~ 
éê
çÖ

ê~
ã
ã
É 
çÑ
 ï
çê
âë

 íç
~Ç

Çê
Éë

ë 
íÜ
Éë

É 
ã
~í
íÉ
êë
K

b
Åç

å
ç
ã
áÅ
 d

êç
ï
íÜ

i~
åÅ

~ë
íÉ
ê 
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

íDë
êÉ
Åç

Öå
áíá
çå

 ~
ë 
~

îá
ëá
íç
ê 
ÇÉ

ëí
áå
~í
çå

 áë
Éå

Ü~
åÅ

ÉÇ

 ̂Ñì
íì
êÉ
 ~
éé

êç
~Å

Ü
Ñç
ê 
íÜ
É 
éê
çî

áë
áç
å 
çÑ
 ~

j
ìë

Éì
ã
ë 
ëÉ

êî
áÅ
É 
áë

áå
 é
ä~
ÅÉ

 ~
åÇ

 ï
çê
âá
åÖ

ÉÑ
ÑÉ
Åí
áî
Éä
ó

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 Ö
çç

Ç
l
å 
í~
êÖ
Éí

l
å 
í~
êÖ
Éí

l
å 
í~
êÖ
Éí

q
Üá
ë 
áë
 ~
 å
Éï

 ã
É~

ëì
êÉ
 áå

 íÜ
É 
OM

NP
JN
Q 
`
çê
éç

ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å

áå
Çá
Å~

íáå
Ö 
éê
çÖ

êÉ
ëë

 ç
å 
íÜ
É 
çå

Öç
áå
Ö 
Çá
ëÅ

ìë
ëá
çå

ë 
Ñç
ê 
~

ëÜ
~ê
ÉÇ

 j
ìë

Éì
ã
ë 
p
Éê
îá
ÅÉ

 áå
 é
~ê
íå
Éê
ëÜ

áé
 ï
áíÜ

i~
åÅ

~ë
Üá
êÉ
 `
çì

åí
ó 
`
çì

åÅ
áä 
~å

Ç 
m
êÉ
ëí
çå

 `
áíó
 `
çì

åÅ
áäK

j
áäÉ
ëí
çå

Éë
 áå

 n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 Ü
~î

É 
ÄÉ

Éå
 ~
ÅÜ

áÉ
îÉ

Ç 
áå
Åä
ìÇ

áå
Ö

~ 
ï
çê
âë

Üç
é 
íÉ
ëí
áå
Ö 
íÜ
É 
ÑÉ
~ë

áÄ
áäá
íó
 ç
Ñ ~

 ë
Ü~

êÉ
Ç 
~é

éê
ç~

ÅÜ
K

 
 ̂ê
Éé

çê
í ç

å 
íÜ
É 
Åç

åÅ
äì
ëá
çå

ë 
Çê
~ï

å 
Ñê
çã

 íÜ
áë
 ï
çê
âë

Üç
é

ï
áää
 Ä
É 
Åç

åë
áÇ
Éê
ÉÇ

 Ä
ó 
`
~Ä

áå
Éí
 áå

 g
~å

ì~
êó
K

iç
Å~

ä ~
ìí
Üç

êáí
ó

é~
êí
åÉ

êë
 ï
çê
âá
åÖ

íç
ÖÉ

íÜ
Éê
 íç

 Ç
Éî

Éä
çé

éä
~å

ë 
Ñç
ê 
ÉÅ

çå
çã

áÅ
Öê
çï

íÜ
 ~
äáÖ
åÉ

Ç 
íç

å~
íáç

å~
ääó
 áã

éç
êí
~å

í

j
~à
çê
 d

çî
Éê
åã

Éå
í

í~
êÖ
Éí
ë 
Ñç
ê

ÇÉ
íÉ
êã

áå
áå
Ö 
j
~à
çê

m
ä~
åå

áå
Ö

^
éé

äáÅ
~í
áç
åë

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 Ö
çç

Ç
RM

KM
MB

RS
KO
RB

Ed
êÉ
Éå

F
RT

KN
QB

Ed
êÉ
Éå

F
RO

KM
MB

Eo
ÉÇ

F
RS

KM
MB

Ed
êÉ
Éå

F
få
 n

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
I í
ÜÉ

 é
Éê
ÅÉ

åí
~Ö

É 
çÑ
 ã

~à
çê
 ~
éé

äáÅ
~í
áç
åë

ÇÉ
íÉ
êã

áå
ÉÇ

 ï
áíÜ

áå
 ë
í~
íì
íç
êó
 Ç
É~

Çä
áå
Éë

 Ü
~ë

 áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç 
Äó

QB
 ç
å 
n
ì~

êí
Éê
 O
 ~
åÇ

 áë
 S
B
 Ü
áÖ
ÜÉ

ê 
íÜ
~å

 íÜ
É 
ë~

ã
É

éÉ
êáç

Ç 
áå
 O
MN

OL
NP

K  
q
ÜÉ

 Å
çì

åÅ
áä 
áë
 Å
çå

ëá
ëí
Éå

íäó
éÉ

êÑ
çê
ã
áå
Ö 
ëá
Öå

áÑá
Å~

åí
äó
 ~
Äç

îÉ
 íÜ

É 
í~
êÖ
Éí
 ë
Éí
 Ä
ó

d
çî

Éê
åã

Éå
í ç

Ñ P
MB

K
Éå

Éê
Öó

 ~
åÇ

e
Éó

ëÜ
~ã

 j
S

íê
~å

ëé
çê
í ä
áå
âë

j
~à
çê
 d

çî
Éê
åã

Éå
í

í~
êÖ
Éí
ë 
Ñç
ê 
p
éÉ

Åá
~ä

ã
É~

ëì
êÉ
ë 
çå

 j
~à
çê

^
éé

É~
äë

iç
ï
 áë
 Ö
çç

Ç
MK
MM

B
PK
MM

B
q
Üá
ë 
áë
 ~
 ã

É~
ëì

êÉ
 ç
Ñ í
ÜÉ

 ~
îÉ

ê~
ÖÉ

 é
Éê
ÅÉ

åí
~Ö

É 
çÑ

ÇÉ
Åá
ëá
çå

ë 
çå

 ã
~à
çê
 Ç
Éî

Éä
çé

ã
Éå

í ~
éé

äáÅ
~í
áç
åë

çî
Éê
íì
êå
ÉÇ

 ç
å 
~é

éÉ
~ä
 E
áKÉ

 äç
ï
 B

 áë
 Ö
çç

ÇF
K  
k
ç 
éê
Éî

áç
ìë

Ç~
í~
 Ü
~ë

 Ä
ÉÉ

å 
~î

~á
ä~
Ää
É 
Äì

í é
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 áå
 n

ì~
êí
Éê
 P

áë
 ë
áÖ
åá
ÑáÅ

~å
íäó
 Ä
Éä
çï

 íÜ
É 
d
çî

Éê
åã

Éå
í ë

Éí
 í~

êÖ
Éí
 ç
Ñ

OM
B
I á
åÇ

áÅ
~í
áå
Ö 
Öç

çÇ
 é
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

K
j
çê
É 
íç
ìê
áë
íë

Åç
ã
áå
Ö 
íç
 íÜ

É 
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í
~å

Ç 
íç
ìê
áë
í á
åÅ

çã
É 
áë

ã
~ñ

áã
áë
ÉÇ

k
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 é
Éç

éä
É

é~
êí
áÅ
áé
~í
áå
Ö 
áå
 ~
êí
ëI

Åì
äíì

êÉ
I

Éå
íÉ
êí
~á
åã

Éå
í ~

åÇ
Åç

ã
ã
ìå

áíó
 É
îÉ

åí
ë 
áå

íÜ
É 
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 Ö
çç

Ç
OR

IU
SO

PQ
IR
ON

Ed
êÉ
Éå

F
PR

IV
SM

Ed
êÉ
Éå

F
q
Üá
ë 
áë
 ~
 ã

É~
ëì

êÉ
 ç
Ñ í
ÜÉ

 Ñç
çí
Ñ~
ää 
~í
 íÜ

É 
`
áíó
 j

ìë
Éì

ã
ë

~å
Ç 
q
ÜÉ

 m
ä~
íÑç

êã
K  
q
Üá
ë 
Ü~

ë 
ëÜ

çï
å 
~ 
ëí
É~

Çó
 áå

Åê
É~

ëÉ
èì

~ê
íÉ
êJ
çå

Jè
ì~

êí
Éê
 áå

 O
MN

PL
NQ

 E
a
~í
~ 
áå
 íÜ

É 
éê
Éî

áç
ìë

óÉ
~ê
 ï
~ë

 å
çí
 ~
î~

áä~
Ää
ÉF
K  
n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 ë
~ï

 ~
 ë
ìÄ

ëí
~å

íá~
ä

áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
 áå

 ~
Çã

áë
ëá
çå

ë 
~í
 íÜ

É 
`
áíó
 j

ìë
Éì

ã
 Å
çã

é~
êÉ
Ç

íç
 n

ì~
êí
Éê
 O
I ~

åÇ
 Ä
Éí
íÉ
ê 
íÜ
~å

 É
ñé

ÉÅ
íÉ
Ç 
~í
íÉ
åÇ

Éå
ÅÉ

 ~
í

q
ÜÉ

 m
ä~
Ñç
êã

K
q
ÜÉ

 ~
ííê
~Å

íáî
Éå

Éë
ë

çÑ
 íÜ

É 
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í ~
ë 
~

éä
~Å

É 
íç
 î
áë
áí 
~å

Ç
áå
îÉ

ëí
 áå

 áë
 áã

éê
çî

ÉÇ

k
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 Ü
Éê
áí~

ÖÉ
~ë

ëÉ
íë
 áã

éê
çî

ÉÇ
e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 Ö
çç

Ç
ON

NT
Eo

ÉÇ
F

OU
Ed

êÉ
Éå

F
U

Eo
ÉÇ

F
OQ

Ed
êÉ
Éå

F
q
Üá
ë 
áë
 ~
 ã

É~
ëì

êÉ
 ç
Ñ í
ÜÉ

 å
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 i
áë
íÉ
Ç 
_
ìá
äÇ
áå
Ö

^
éé

äáÅ
~í
áç
åë

 ~
éé

êç
îÉ

Ç 
äÉ
~Ç

áå
Ö 
íç
 ~
å 
Éå

Ü~
åÅ

Éã
Éå

í ç
Ñ

íÜ
É 
~ë

ëÉ
íK 
 q
ÜÉ

 å
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 íÜ

Éë
É 
~é

éä
áÅ
~í
áç
åë

 Å
~å

Ñäì
Åì

~í
É 
ï
áÇ
Éä
ó 
çî

Éê
 íÜ

É 
Åç

ìê
ëÉ

 ç
Ñ í
ÜÉ

 ó
É~

ê 
~å

ÇI
 ~
ë

ëì
ÅÜ

I Å
~å

 Ä
É 
Çá
ÑÑá
Åì

äí 
íç
 é
êÉ
Çá
Åí
K

e
É~

äí
Ü
 C

 t
Éä
äÄ
Éá
å
Ö

j
çå

 c
ÉÄ

 O
Q 
NQ

WN
PW
PN

 O
MN

Q
`
çê
éç

ê~
íÉ
m
ä~
åN

PJ
NQ

O 
çÑ
 P

Page 18



`
ç
êé

ç
ê~
íÉ
 m
ä~
å
 n

ì
~ê
íÉ
êä
ó 
q
êÉ
å
Ç
 o

Éé
ç
êí

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 P
 O
MN

PL
OM

NQ

j
É~

ëì
êÉ
 få

Ñç
êã

~í
áç
å

l
ì
íÅ
ç
ã
É

j
É~

ëì
êÉ

m
ç
ä~
êá
íó

n
ì
~ê
íÉ
ê 
P

OM
NO

LO
MN

P

^
Åí
ì
~ä

n
ì
~ê
íÉ
ê 
Q

OM
NO

LO
MN

P

^
Åí
ì
~ä

q
êÉ
å
Ç

n
ì
~ê
íÉ
ê 
N

OM
NP

LO
MN

Q

^
Åí
ì
~ä

q
êÉ
å
Ç

n
ì
~ê
íÉ
ê 
O

OM
NP

LO
MN

Q

^
Åí
ì
~ä

q
êÉ
å
Ç

n
ì
~ê
íÉ
ê 
P

OM
NP

LO
MN

Q

^
Åí
ì
~ä

q
êÉ
å
Ç

`
ç
ã
ã
Éå

íë

e
É~

äí
Ü
 C

 t
Éä
äÄ
Éá
å
Ö

b
åÜ

~å
ÅÉ

Ç 
èì

~ä
áíó
 ç
Ñ

äáÑ
É 
çÑ
 äç

Å~
ä ê
Éë

áÇ
Éå

íë
íÜ
êç
ìÖ

Ü 
~Å

ÅÉ
ëë

 íç
Öç

çÇ
 è
ì~

äáí
ó 
Üç

ìë
áå
Ö

k
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 áã

éê
çî

ÉÇ
Üç

ã
Éë

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 Ö
çç

Ç
RR

Q
RP

U
Eo

ÉÇ
F

RT
R

Ed
êÉ
Éå

F
QV

O
Eo

ÉÇ
F

QU
M

Eo
ÉÇ

F
m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 ~
ë 
~í
 n

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
 áå

Çá
Å~

íÉ
ë 
íÜ
É 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ

çï
åÉ

ê 
çÅ

Åì
éá
ÉÇ

 ~
åÇ

 é
êáî

~í
É 
êÉ
åí
ÉÇ

 Ü
çã

Éë
 íÜ

~í
 Ü
~î

É
ÄÉ

Éå
 áã

éê
çî

ÉÇ
 íÜ

êç
ìÖ

Ü 
íÜ
É 
Åç

ìå
Åá
äDë
 áå

íÉ
êî
Éå

íáç
åI

Éå
Ü~

åÅ
áå
Ö 
íÜ
É 
èì

~ä
áíó
 ç
Ñ ä
áÑÉ

 ç
Ñ î

ìä
åÉ

ê~
Ää
É 
éÉ

çé
äÉ
K  
q
ÜÉ

åì
ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 é
êç
éÉ

êí
áÉ
ë 
áã

éê
çî

ÉÇ
 áå

 íÜ
É 
èì

~ê
íÉ
ê 
êÉ
ã
~á
åë

Üá
ÖÜ

I Ç
Éë

éá
íÉ
 Ä
Éá
åÖ

 ë
äáÖ
Üí
äó
 äÉ

ëë
 íÜ

~å
 áå

 n
ì~

êí
Éê
 O
K  
^
ë

~í
 n

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
 ~
 íç

í~
ä ç

Ñ N
IR
QV

 é
êç
éÉ

êí
áÉ
ë 
Ü~

îÉ
 Ä
ÉÉ

å
áã

éê
çî

ÉÇ
 ~
åÇ

 íÜ
É 
íç
í~
ä É

ñé
ÉÅ

íÉ
Ç 
íç
 Ü
~î

É 
ÄÉ

Éå
 ê
Éé

~á
êÉ
Ç

~í
 íÜ

É 
Éå

Ç 
çÑ
 íÜ

É 
óÉ

~ê
 áë
 ç
å 
íê
~Å

â 
íç
 Ä
É 
~Å

Üá
Éî

ÉÇ
K

e
É~

äíÜ
 ~
åÇ

ï
Éä
äÄ
Éá
åÖ

 áã
éê
çî

ÉÇ
~å

Ç 
ã
çê
í~
äáí
ó 
ê~
íÉ
ë

êÉ
Çì

ÅÉ
Ç 
Ñç
ê

îì
äå
Éê
~Ä

äÉ
 é
Éç

éä
É 
áå

íÜ
É 
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í

o
ÉÇ

ìÅ
íáç

å 
áå

åì
ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 Ü
çã

Éä
Éë

ë
éÉ

çé
äÉ
 áå

 íÜ
É 
Çá
ëí
êáÅ

í

iç
ï
 áë
 Ö
çç

Ç
NT

ON
Eo

ÉÇ
F

OV
Eo

ÉÇ
F

NS
Ed

êÉ
Éå

F
OR

Eo
ÉÇ

F
j
É~

ëì
êÉ
 áå

Çá
Å~

íÉ
ë 
íÜ
É 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 é
Éç

éä
É 
ÇÉ

íÉ
êã

áå
ÉÇ

 ~
ë

Dë
í~
íì
íç
êó
 Ü
çã

Éä
Éë

ëD
 E
áKÉ

K ä
çï

 áë
 Ö
çç

ÇF
K  
`
çã

é~
êÉ
Ç 
íç

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 O
 íÜ

É 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 é
Éç

éä
É 
Üç

ã
Éä
Éë

ë 
Ü~

ë
áå
Åê
É~

ëÉ
ÇK
  t

áíÜ
 íÜ

É 
Éñ

ÅÉ
éí
áç
å 
çÑ
 n

ì~
êí
Éê
 O
I

éÉ
êÑ
çê
ã
~å

ÅÉ
 ~
Åê
çë

ë 
íÜ
É 
óÉ

~ê
 áë
 ~
å 
áå
Çá
Å~

íáç
å 
çÑ
 íÜ

É
ÖÉ

åÉ
ê~
ä å

ÉÖ
~í
áî
É 
áã

é~
Åí
 íÜ

~í
 íÜ

É 
Åì

êê
Éå

í É
Åç

åç
ã
áÅ

Åä
áã

~í
É 
áë
 Ü
~î

áå
Ö 
çå

 é
Éç

éä
É 
ÄÉ

Åç
ã
áå
Ö 
Üç

ã
Éä
Éë

ëK
få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ

îì
äå
Éê
~Ä

äÉ
Üç

ìë
ÉÜ

çä
Çë

ÄÉ
åÉ

Ñáí
áå
Ö 
Ñê
çã

t
~ê
ã
 e
çã

Éë
áå
áíá
~í
áî
Éë

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 Ö
çç

Ç
OP

O
TR

Eo
ÉÇ

F
NV

U
Ed

êÉ
Éå

F
ON

M
Ed

êÉ
Éå

F
PO

N
Ed

êÉ
Éå

F
m
Éê
Ñç
êã

~å
ÅÉ

 ~
Åê
çë

ë 
íÜ
É 
óÉ

~ê
 ë
Üç

ï
ë 
~ 
ëí
É~

Çó
 áå

Åê
É~

ëÉ
èì

~ê
íÉ
êJ
çå

Jè
ì~

êí
Éê
 ç
Ñ í
ÜÉ

 å
ìã

ÄÉ
ê 
çÑ
 î
ìä
åÉ

ê~
Ää
É 
éÉ

çé
äÉ

íÜ
~í
 Ü
~î

É 
ÄÉ

Éå
 Ü
Éä
éÉ

Ç 
íÜ
êç
ìÖ

Ü 
íÜ
É 
Åç

ìå
Åá
äDë
 ï
~ê
ã

Üç
ã
É 
áå
áíá
~í
áî
Éë

K  
`
çã

é~
êáë

çå
 ç
Ñ n

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
 ï
áíÜ

 íÜ
É

ë~
ã
É 
éÉ

êáç
Ç 
áå
 O
MN

OL
NP

 ~
äë
ç 
ÇÉ

ã
çå

ëí
~í
Éë

 áã
éê
çî

ÉÇ
éÉ

êÑ
çê
ã
~å

ÅÉ
K

q
ÜÉ

 Ü
É~

äíÜ
 ~
åÇ

ï
Éä
äÄ
Éá
åÖ

 ç
Ñ ä
çÅ

~ä
êÉ
ëá
ÇÉ

åí
ë 
çÑ
 ~
ää 
~Ö

Éë
áë
 áã

éê
çî

ÉÇ
 Ä
ó

é~
êí
áÅ
áé
~í
áç
å 
áå

ëé
çê
íë
 ~
åÇ

 äÉ
áë
ìê
É

~Å
íáî

áíá
Éë

få
Åê
É~

ëÉ
Ç 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ

éÉ
çé

äÉ
 é
~ê
íáÅ

áé
~í
áå
Ö

áå
 ë
éç

êí
ë 
~å

Ç 
äÉ
áë
ìê
É

~Å
íáî

áíá
Éë

e
áÖ
Ü 
áë
 Ö
çç

Ç
M

M
NV

RI
SR

R
Ed

êÉ
Éå

F
OP

PI
RP

S
Ed

êÉ
Éå

F
NS

PI
NN

Q
Eo

ÉÇ
F

q
Üá
ë 
áë
 ~
 å
Éï

 ã
É~

ëì
êÉ
 áå

 O
MN

PL
NQ

K  
q
ÜÉ

êÉ
 Ü
~ë

 Ä
ÉÉ

å 
~

êÉ
Çì

Åí
áç
å 
áå
 íÜ

É 
åì

ã
ÄÉ

ê 
çÑ
 é
Éç

éä
É 
é~

êí
áÅ
áé
~í
áå
Ö 
áå

ëé
çê
íë
 ~
åÇ

 äÉ
áë
ìê
É 
~Å

íáî
áíá
Éë

 áå
 n

ì~
êí
Éê
 P
 Å
çã

é~
êÉ
Ç 
ï
áíÜ

n
ì~

êí
Éê
 O
I ä
~ê
ÖÉ

äó
 ~
ë 
~ 
êÉ
ëì

äí 
çÑ
 ë
É~

ëç
å~

ä Ñ
äì
Åí
ì~

íáç
åë

~å
Ç 
ã
ìÅ

Ü 
ÄÉ

ííÉ
ê 
íÜ
~å

 É
ñé

ÉÅ
íÉ
Ç 
éÉ

êÑ
çê
ã
~å

ÅÉ
 Ç
ìê
áå
Ö 
íÜ
É

ëì
ã
ã
Éê
K  
^
ë 
Ç~

í~
 Å
çå

íáå
ìÉ

ë 
íç
 Ä
É 
Åç

ääÉ
Åí
ÉÇ

 ì
ëÉ

Ñì
ä

óÉ
~ê
Jç
åJ
óÉ

~ê
 Å
çã

é~
êáë

çå
ë 
~å

Ç 
ã
~å

~Ö
Éã

Éå
í

áå
Ñç
êã

~í
áç
å 
ï
áää
 Ä
É 
~î

~á
ä~
Ää
ÉK

j
çå

 c
ÉÄ

 O
Q 
NQ

WN
PW
PN

 O
MN

Q
`
çê
éç

ê~
íÉ
m
ä~
åN

PJ
NQ

P 
çÑ
 P

Page 19



Appendix C 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Report of: Financial Services Manager 

Corporate Financial Monitoring 
Quarter 3: October – December 2013 

      

Page 20



Prepared by Financial Services (Resources)  1 

1 Introduction 

This monitoring report for 2013/14 sets out an indicative corporate picture of the Council’s 
financial performance for the period ending 31 December 2013.   

The report summarises the budgetary variances arising through services’ monitoring, and 
also identifies any omissions, updates and/or actions required.  In addition there are 
various other specific sections for salary monitoring, capital expenditure and financing, the 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA), revenue collection performance and various reserves.  
The content and format of this report will continue to evolve, to draw on both national and 
local finance matters. 

It should be noted that this quarter’s monitoring is based on the Revised Budget. 

 

2 General Fund Revenue Monitoring 

1.1 General Fund Summary Position 

 
The current overall General Fund summary position shows that at the end of December 
there is a net underspend of £51K against the revised budget.  This is currently forecast 
to increase to £81K by the end of the year.   

  

 Annual 
Budget 
£000’s 

Profiled 
Budget 
£000’s 

Actual 
£000’s 

Current 
Underspend 
£000’s 

Salaries 15,776 11,896 11,854 (42) 

Other Net Budgets 4,043 2,699 2,690 (9) 

Total 19,819 14,595 14,544 (51) 

 Full Year Projection (81) 
 

1.2 Main Budget Variances 

Annex A details the major true variances identified to date that have been included within 
individual services’ monitoring reports.  The variances reported are either +/- £5K in value 
and cover premises, transport, supplies and services and general income.  A summary is 
provided in the following table. 

 

SUMMARY BY SERVICE Current 
£000’s 

Current 
Year 

Projection 
£000’s 

Future 
Years 

Projection 
£000’s 

 
 

( ) Favourable / + Adverse 

Environmental Services +33 +7 (9) 

Health & Housing +8 +27 0 

Regeneration & Planning (53) (40) 0 

Resources +3 +10 0 
TOTAL VARIANCES (9) +4 (9) 

Page 21



Prepared by Financial Services (Resources)  2 

1.3 General Fund Salary Monitoring 

Salary monitoring is reported separately, as in aggregate terms any variances can have 
significant effect. 

Savings of £42K have been achieved against the revised budget, and these are estimated 
to increase to £85K by the end of the year.   

The following graph shows the savings on a Service by Service basis. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 General Fund Capital Programme 

2.1 Capital Expenditure & Financing 

At the end of December there were spend and 
commitments of £13.128M against the revised 
programme of £17.294M. Details of spend 
against each scheme is shown at Annex B. 

All updates to the programme have been 
reported to Cabinet and Council as part of the 
budget process. 

The performance of the Council’s property 
portfolio has strong linkages with capital 
investment and financing, and therefore at this 
point attention is drawn to the Property Group 
report at Appendix D, provided alongside this 
financial monitoring report.     

 

 

 

£0M

£2M

£4M

£6M

£8M

£10M

£12M

£14M

£16M

£18M

Budget Remaining

Spend & Commitments

Page 22



Prepared by Financial Services (Resources)  3 

(£955K) total in-year 
surplus 

3 Revenue Collection Performance 

3.1 Collection Fund Monitoring 

3.1.1 Council Tax Yield (Total Collectable) 

This section provides a summary analysis of the current surplus or deficit on the Fund, 
shown in the table below.  Such a surplus or deficit arises because of the great many 
changes in liability that occur throughout the year.  Furthermore, any difference between 
estimated and actual collection performance will ultimately have a bearing. 
 
The table goes on to compare budgeted council tax yield, or total amount collectable, with 
the yield position as at 31 December: 
 
 

   £000’s 

Collection Fund Surplus (December 2013)    (1,192)    

 
Represented by: 

   

      Collection Fund Surplus b/fwd    (365) 

      In-Year Movements to Date: 
      Lower Council Tax Support than estimated  

  
 

  
 (496) 

      Higher Second/Empty Homes income    (261) 
      Other Movements in Tax Base    (70) 
    (1,192) 
    
Compared to: Budgeted 

Projection 
£000’s 

Actual 
Position 
£000’s 

  

    Total Council Tax Collectable (Yield)  57,030  57,942   
    Actual amount collected  (49,445)  (49,445)  85.3%  

Amount Outstanding  7,585  8,497  (912) 

 
 
As at 31 December, an estimated surplus of £1.192M (Qtr2 £1.320M) is apparent, which is 
significantly higher than for the same period last year, and a reduction of £128K on the Qtr2 
position. 
 
This year’s position is made up of: 
 
- a surplus brought forward from 2012/13 of £365K; 
- £496K lower than estimated council tax support.  This will continue to fluctuate as 

claimants’ circumstances change, but since establishing the scheme proposals back in 
the autumn/winter of 2012, the trend is still that the total support being claimed is lower 
than expected; 

- £261K higher than estimated income from second/empty homes.  There is still no clear 
analysis as yet to show how much of this relates to empty homes being brought back 
into use, and how much is due to other changes in circumstances. 

- a balance of £70K (Qtr2 £631K) relating to other movements in the tax base or other 
factors which have still to be substantiated. 

 
More detailed analysis of the tax base has been undertaken during the last quarter in order 
to understand the movements and to calculate the 2014/15 tax base.  As a result, an 

Page 23



Prepared by Financial Services (Resources)  4 

estimated surplus of £1M was formally declared for 2013/14 of which the City Council will 
receive £131K (13%) to go towards the 2014/15 General Fund revenue budget. 
 
The higher yield being experienced in the current year has also been projected into next 
years’ tax base and has resulted in an addition 900 Band D equivalent properties being 
added.  
 

3.1.2 Business Rates Retention 

More detailed analysis of the Business Rates Retention system and accounting 
requirements has also been undertaken, and an explanation of how the system works and 
the financial implications for the Council is attached at Annex C.   
 
 

3.2 Council Tax and Business Rates Collection 
 
The council tax collected is slightly below target but expected to recover by the year end.  
This is considered more a reflection of the opportunity for taxpayers to pay by 12 rather 
than 10 instalments and the levy of additional charges on long term empty properties, 
rather than any direct impact resulting from welfare reform changes.  The percentage of 
NNDR collected is on target.     
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

3.3 Sundry Debts 

This section sets out the latest position on the level of outstanding sundry debts (excluding 
Council Housing).  At the end of December the total debt outstanding was just over £3M, 
which is £300K more than the previous quarter.  This is mainly due to new debts (£266K) 
being raised by Environmental Services. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Percentage 
Collected 

2012/13 
 

2013/14 
 

 2013/14 
Target 

 

2013/14 
Actual 

 

Status 

 All Years   In Year  

Council Tax  79.3% 78.3%  86.2% 85.3% Slightly 
behind 
Target 

Business Rates 87.8% 89.1%  88.9% 88.9% On Target 

 Sept 13 Dec 13 

 £000’s £000’s 

0-28 days 808 969 

29-58 days 152 274 

59-90 days 128 123 

91-182 days 415 249 

183-363 days 274 396 

364+ days 976 1,024 

 2,753 3,035 

Previous Year 2,748 2,124 

£0K

£200K

£400K

£600K

£800K

£1,000K

£1,200K

0-28
days

29-58
days

59-90
days

91-182
days

183-363
days

364+
days

Analysis of Aged Debt

Sep-13 Dec-13

Page 24



Prepared by Financial Services (Resources)  5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Attached at Annex D is an update on the status of debt greater than 90 days old.  This 
shows what action is being taken in relation to the debt and at what stage the recovery is 
at. 

 

 

4 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

 

4.1 HRA Revenue Position 

 
At the end of December the position for the HRA shows an overspend of £10K against 
the revised budget, which is currently projected to increase to £28K by the end of the 
year.  Details of the variances are as follows: 

    
The variance relates to rental income from council houses which is projected to be down 
slightly (0.2%) as a result of higher than anticipated voids.  The level has increased from 
1.63% to 1.87%.   

 
 

4.2 Council Housing Rent Arrears 

This section monitors the level of tenant arrears, to indicate any impact from welfare 
reforms and/or the wider economy on rent collection and in turn, to inform whether any 
specific actions are necessary.  It will also feed into future reviews of the bad debt 
provision. 

The following chart shows the current level of arrears compared to the previous 4 years.    
At the end of December, the level of arrears for 2013/14 is £249K (Qtr 2 £254K) which is 
slightly lower than previous quarter again despite several fluctuations.   

 

Page 25



Prepared by Financial Services (Resources)  6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.3 HRA Capital Programme 

This section analyses actual spend and commitments against the Council Housing Capital 
Programme at the end of December.  To date spend and commitments total £3.4M against 
the revised programme of £4.9M leaving a balance of £1.5M.   
 

 Current 
Approved 
Programme 

£000’s 

Spend & 
Commitments 

to Date 
£000’s 

Budget 
Remaining 
£000’s 

 Adaptations 300 147 153 
 Energy Efficiency / Boiler   

Replacement 633 243 390 

 Bathroom / Kitchen    
Refurbishment 638 546 92 

 External Refurbishments 1,359 1,185 174 
 Environmental Improvements 886 517 369 
 Rewiring 92 33 59 
 Fire Precaution Works 267 114 153 
 Lift Replacement 105 50 55 
 Re-roofing / Window Renewals 544 495 49 

 PV Solar Panels 21 3 18 

 Septic Tanks Renewal 8 7 1 

 Total Mobile Upgrade 12 11 1 

 TOTAL 4,865 3,351 1,514 

 

£0M

£1M

£2M

£3M

£4M

£5M

Budget Remaining

Spend & Commitments

Page 26



Prepared by Financial Services (Resources)  7 

 

5 Provisions and Reserves 

This section provides an update on key provisions and reserves, and balances. 
 

5.1 General Fund Unallocated Balance 

The current position with regards to unallocated Balances is set out below. 
 

 £000’s 

Original projected balance as at 31 March 2013 2,635 

Add: 2012/13 underspend 547 

Less: Carry forwards (subject to full approval) (101) 

Add: Revised Budgeted Contribution for 2013/14 354 

Add: Current Projected In-Year Underspend 81 

Latest Projected Unallocated Balance as at 31 March 2014 3,516 

Minimum Level  1,000 

Amount Available to Support Future Years’ Budgets 2,516 

 
The table shows that if the current projected net underspending materialises Balances 
would be £3.516M by the end of the financial year, which leaves £2.516M to support future 
years’ budgets, after allowing for the minimum approved levels.  It should be noted that 
£1.4M has already been applied to support the future years budgets, subject to approval by 
Council on 26 February. 
 

5.2 Insurance Provision 

The current balance on the insurance provision is £200K, after making net payments of 
£113K in settlement of claims made. The estimated value of claims outstanding is £198K, 
which is £2K less than the current provision.   

5.3 Bad Debt Provision 

The Bad Debt provision is formally reviewed half yearly at revised estimate time and 
closedown.  In addition, quarterly updates are now provided as part of the Corporate 
Monitoring process. 

 
The level of the provision has been assessed in simple terms based on assumed levels of 
write-off as a proportion of debt outstanding.  Based on the figures shown in section 3.3 the 
level of provision would be as follows: 
 
 

Period Debt 
£000’s 

% Cover 
Required 

Value 
£000’s 

Up to 1 Month 969 1% 10 
1 Month to 3 Months 397 5% 20 
3 Months to 365 
Days 645 10% 64 

Over 365 Days  1,024 50% 512 
TOTAL 2,753  606 

Page 27



Prepared by Financial Services (Resources)  8 

 
The current balance on the General Fund Bad Debt provision is £585K (Qtr2 £589K) which 
is £21K (Qtr2 £10K more) less than the requirement indicated, that is after allowing for this 
year’s contribution of £100K and write-offs of £174K. Currently, therefore, the balance is 
just under the required level, however a detailed assessment will be undertaken as part of 
the 2013/14 closedown process. 
 
 

6 Exceptions to Tender 

In accordance with the latest approved contract procedure rules (updated January 2013), 
all exceptions to tender will be reported as part of the quarterly corporate monitoring 
process.  However, there have been no exceptions to tender during quarter 3.  
 
 

7 Risk Management 

There have been positive developments regarding Luneside East and key asset sales, 
during the period.  However, the work undertaken in respect of the Business Rates 
Retention Scheme has highlighted the key risks associated with projecting potential growth 
and the impact outstanding rating appeals can have.  As a result, the budgets for all years 
have been produced on the basis that funding will fall to the Safety Net level as opposed to 
the Baseline Funding Level as determined by the Government.  Further details on this are 
set out in Annex C. 
 
In December the Council received the provisional settlement from the Government which 
provided provisional figures for 2014/15 and illustrative figures for 2015/16.  For next year 
the position was only £110K less than originally projected in the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy, but almost £1.1M less for 2015/16.  This highlights the fact that the Council’s main 
risk is still linked to meeting its future financial challenges.  More information on this is 
provided in the Budget reports presented to Cabinet and Council.   
 
 
 

 

Page 28



Se
rv
ic
es
!&
!S
er
vi
ce
!A
re
a

V
ar
ia
nc
e!

to
!D
at
e

Cu
rr
en

t!
Ye

ar
!

Pr
oj
ec
ti
on

Fu
tu
re
!

Ye
ar
s!

Pr
oj
ec
ti
on

Re
as
on

!fo
r!
V
ar
ia
nc
e!
&
!A
ct
io
n!
be

in
g!
ta
ke
n

£
£

£

En
vi
ro
nm

en
t!S

er
vi
ce
s

O
ff
!S
tr
ee
t"C

ar
"P
ar
ks
"!
"S
er
vi
ce
s"
!"
St
"N
ic
ho

la
s"
Ar
ca
de

"
+0

+5
,1
00

+0
Ad

di
tio

na
l"c
on

tr
ib
ut
io
n"
to
"s
er
vi
ce
"c
ha
rg
e"
du

e"
to
"n
on

!r
ec
ur
rin

g"
ne

ce
ss
ar
y"
ex
pe

nd
itu

re
"o
n"
Sh
op

pi
ng
"C
en

tr
e"

Se
rv
ic
e"
Ch

ar
ge
"1
1.
72

%
"p
ay
ab
le
"b
y"
th
e"
Ci
ty
"C
ou

nc
il.

O
ff
!S
tr
ee
t"C

ar
"P
ar
ks
"!
"F
ee
s"
an
d"
Ev
en

in
g"
Pa
rk
in
g"

+4
,0
00

+1
0,
00

0
+0

Si
nc
e"
th
e"
Re

vi
se
d"
Bu

dg
et
"w
as
"s
et
,"N

ov
em

be
r"a

nd
"D
ec
em

be
r's
"in
co
m
e"
is
"£
4K

"b
el
ow

"ta
rg
et
."Q

4"
is
"d
iff
ic
ul
t"t
o"

pr
ed

ic
t"d

ue
"to

"la
rg
e"
di
ff
er
en

ce
s"
in
"in
co
m
e"
co
m
pa
re
d"
w
ith

"2
01

2/
13

,"h
ow

ev
er
"th

e"
va
ria

nc
e"
co
ul
d"
in
cr
ea
se
"to

"

£1
0K

.

Tr
ad
e"
Re

fu
se
"!
"In
co
m
e

(8
,4
00

)
(8
,4
00

)
(8
,5
00

)
Ad

di
tio

na
l"i
nc
om

e"
ge
ne

ra
te
d.

H
ig
hw

ay
s

+3
7,
00

0
+0

+0
Th
er
e"
w
as
"a
"re

du
ce
d"
le
ve
l"o
f"w

or
k"
du

rin
g"
th
e"
Ch

ris
tm

as
"a
nd

"N
ew

"Y
ea
r"p

er
io
d.
""A

ny
"y
ea
r!
en

d"
de

fic
it"
w
ill
"b
e"

of
fs
et
"b
y"
a"
co
nt
rib

ut
io
n"
fr
om

"th
e"
hi
gh
w
ay
s"
re
se
rv
e"
as
"p
ar
t"o

f"t
he

"c
lo
se
do

w
n"
pr
oc
es
s.

H
ea
lt
h!
&
!H
ou

si
ng

M
ai
n"
H
al
l"I
nc
om

e"
!"
Sa
lt"
Ay

re
+6
,3
00

+1
3,
30

0
+0

U
nd

er
ac
hi
ev
em

en
t"o

f"i
nc
om

e"
fr
om

"e
ve
nt
s,
"a
ct
iv
ite

s"
an
d"
pr
iv
at
e"
hi
re
s.
"S
er
vi
ce
"to

"c
ut
"b
ac
k"
to
"tr
y"
an
d"
co
ve
r"t
he

"

sh
or
tf
al
l"f
ro
m
"w
ith

in
"e
xi
st
in
g"
bu

dg
et
s,
"h
ow

ev
er
,"t
hi
s"
is
"n
ot
"g
ua
ra
nt
ee
d.

W
ill
ia
m
so
n"
Pa
rk
"!
"G
as

+1
,8
00

+1
3,
50

0
+0

Bu
dg
et
s"
w
er
e"
ba
se
d"
on

"a
"c
on

tr
ac
t"e

nd
"d
at
e"
of
"M

ay
"1
3"
w
ith

"a
"s
ub

se
qu

en
t"t
ra
ns
fe
r"o

nt
o"
th
e"
Co

un
ci
l's
"Y
PO

"

co
nt
ra
ct
,"h
ow

ev
er
"th

e"
co
nt
ra
ct
"e
nd

"d
ay
"h
as
"n
ow

"b
ee
n"
co
nf
irm

ed
"a
s"
M
ay
"1
4.
"If
"th

e"
Pa
rk
"p
er
fo
rm

s"
as
"w
el
l"a
s"
it"

di
d"
in
"2
01

2/
13
"Q
4"
it"
is
"li
ke
ly
"th

at
"s
om

e"
of
"th

is
"o
ve
rs
pe

nd
"c
an
"b
e"
of
fs
et
"b
y"
ad
di
tio

na
l"i
nc
om

e.

Re
ge
ne

ra
ti
on

!&
!P
ol
ic
y

Pl
an
ni
ng
"A
pp

lic
at
io
n"
Fe
e"
In
co
m
e"

(5
3,
50

0)
(4
0,
00

0)
+0

M
aj
or
"a
pp

lic
at
io
ns
"s
ub

m
itt
ed

"in
"a
dv
an
ce
"o
f"a
nt
ic
ip
at
ed

"d
at
e"
in
cl
ud

in
g"
a"
nu

m
be

r"o
f"a
pp

lic
at
io
ns
"n
ot
"s
ub

je
ct
"to

"

pr
e!
ap
pl
ic
at
io
n"
ad
vi
ce
"(h

en
ce
"u
np

re
di
ct
ed

)."

Re
so
ur
ce
s

St
or
ey
"In
st
itu

te
"R
en

t"&
"S
er
vi
ce
"C
ha
rg
es

+3
,4
00

+1
0,
20

0
+0

Lo
ss
"o
f"t
en

an
t"r
es
ul
tin

g"
in
"re

du
ce
d"
in
co
m
e.

TO
TA

L!
V
A
RI
A
N
CE

S
(9
,4
00

)
+3
,7
00

(8
,5
00

)

O
ve
ra
ll!
Sa
la
ry
!S
av
in
gs

(4
1,
70

0)
(8
5,
00

0)
+0

O
V
ER

A
LL
!V
A
RI
A
N
CE

S
(5
1,
10

0)
(8
1,
30

0)
(8
,5
00

)

!""#$%!

+!
=!
A
dv
er
se
!(!
)!=

!F
av
ou

ra
bl
e

Page 29



!""#$%&

'()*+,(

! ! ! ! !
"#$%&'#()#*+,-.)&$%/)0 1,,'*()#*-2(3&'$)()#*0 456777 7 7 7 84567779

:%#0-;-:'<)0-=)+0)-:>?@'>* AB6777 CA65D4 7 CA65D4 8BA6EBF9
G+&-H+&I-2(3&'$)()#*0- BE76777 7 7 7 8BE767779
J%0*&%/*-H,+?K&'>#L-2(3&'$)()#*0 B76777 7 7 7 8B767779
M+&I)*-2(3&'$)()#*-N'&I0 CF6777 7 7 7 8CF67779
H,+?K&'>#L-2(3&'$)()#*0OP+/%,%*%)0 7 8A6EEE9 B77 8A6BEE9 8A6BEE9
H>&/Q+0)-'R-S)Q%/,)0 B6CAA6777 DBF6A4E 8C4B64TB9 45A67AB 8D5T6T4T9
U'%,)*-N'&I0 B7A6777 7 TF6D47 TF6D47 8D6BF79
N%,,%+(0'#-H+&I-2(30-;-"#Q+#/)()#*0 EC6777 B467A7 7 B467A7 8D6TA79

V'$)&#+#/)-.)&$%/)0 N+&(-W'()0-./Q)() 5T6777 CF67E7 7 CF67E7 84E6TD79
W)+,*Q-;-W'>0%#K-.)&$%/)0 J%0+X,)L-P+/%,%*%)0-V&+#*0 TA56777 ADE6FTC B6BF7 ADC6DAC 8C5C6B459

.+,*-1?&)-G?/,)-G%&/>%*-=%KQ*%#K BA76777 7 7 7 8BA767779
YMG1-H,+/)0-'R-GQ+#K) BT6777 BD67EC 7 BD67EC 8T559

Z)K)#)&+*%'#-;-H,+##%#K 1,X%'#-M%,,0-.B7F-./Q)() EF76777 EF76777 7 EF76777 7
1()#%*?-2(3&'$)()#*0 CC6777 7 A6E5D A6E5D 8E565EE9
:',L-.*&))*-W'>0%#K-Z)K)#)&+*%'# 7 465A7 7 465A7 465A7
:&%#L,)-G,'0)-1RR'&L+X,)-W0K-.B7F-./Q)() D76777 7 7 7 8D767779
GQ+*0['&*Q-V+&L)#0 FF6777 FA6A77 7 FA6A77 8A779
PR&+#/)0-H+00+K) 46777 C6BA5 7 C6BA5 8D4C9
W)?0Q+(-M'00K+*)-1RR'&L+X,)-W0K-.B7F-./Q)() 4E6777 7 7 7 84E67779
2(3&'$%#K-M'&)/+(X)\0-M+%#-.*&))*0 46777 7 C6FCA C6FCA 8CFA9
=+#/+0*)&-.]>+&)-Z'>*)0-HB-HE EAA6777 BT6ETT C46BAE AC64AB 8E7B6A4T9
=>#)0%L)-"+0* 576777 4A6C5B 7 4A6C5B 8E46FET9
M%LL,)*'#-^+*>&)-Z)0)&$) BT6777 C6FDA 7 C6FDA 8BA6CBA9
M'&)/+(X)-UW2E-1-S%)[-R'&-"&%/ EBD6777 7 7 7 8EBD67779
Z%$)&0$%)[-1RR'&L+X,)-W0K-.B7F-./Q)() ECE6777 7 7 7 8ECE67779
.)+-;-Z%$)&-J)R)#/)-N'&I0 4EB6777 BCC65A4 AC6FTE BD5644F 8ECC6AA49
U'>/+#-G&'00%#K-_%#K-.*&))* BC6777 7 7 7 8BC67779
N)0*-"#L-U)(3'&+&?-G+&-H+&I A6777 A6777 7 A6777 7

Z)0'>&/)0 G'&3'&+*)-H&'3)&*?-N'&I0 B6E446777 8D67TF9 576CAC FE6EA5 8B6BDB654C9
=+#/+0*)&-M+&I)*-@-.>&&)#L)&-'R-W)+L,)+0) BB67AF6777 BB67AF6777 7 BB67AF6777 7
2GU-.?0*)(06-2#R&+0*&>/*>&)-;-"]>%3()#* CE76777 F56D5A 4T65DE BB56FA5 8E7E6C4C9

-./012/333 -4/-52/-62 708/216 -4/-0./868 72/-88/4-2

8E67F767779 8CTB6AAA9 7 8CTB6AAA9 8BAT6AAA9
90/383/333: 941-/555: 3 941-/555: 9-51/555:

-5/042/333 -0/.80/801 908/216: -0/.48/-4- 92/405/681:

;<=>?%($=#@">?%+"A<B#%C@<B%D@>"=E%F%,<"=@GHI=G<"E

;<=>?%J#=%K@<L@>BB#

,<BBG=B#"=E%
9MI=E=>"NG"L%
M@N#@E:

!A=I>?%=<%
O>=#

03-4P-2%
D@<EE%
&INL#=

D(J()!Q%RSJO%,!K+;!Q%K)MD)!TT(%TMJ+;M)+JD%)(KM);

;<=>?%D@<EE%K@<L@>BB#

D@>"=E%F%,<"=@GHI=G<"E
G+3%*+,-G'#*&%X>*%'#0-2#/'()

;<=>?

*>@G>"A#%
UMV#@EW#"N%P%
9S"N#@EW#"N:

Page 30



 Annex C 

BUSINESS RATES RETENTION SCHEME 

 
1. 2013/14 Settlement 

The new Business Rates Retention Scheme came into effect on 01 April 2013.  Prior to 
its introduction all business rate income collected by the Council was passed over to 
central Government.  It received some of that income back, but this was fixed, and 
dependent wholly upon each year’s Settlement.  Under the new system the Council still 
collects the income but now retains a proportion itself and passes the remainder to the 
Government, the County Council and the Fire Authority.  The basis of the split is 
determined by Government and the 2013/14 settlement figures are shown below. 
 
 
Net Amount of Business Rates collectable  £60.083M 
Central Government Share – 50%  -£30.042M  
LancashireCounty Council Share – 9%    -£5.407M 
Fire Authority Share – 1%     -£0.601M 
Amount Retained by City Council    £24.033M 
Less Central Government Tariff*   -£19.021M 
City Council Baseline Funding Level     £5.012M 
 
* The Tariff is the difference between how much the Government determines the Council 
needs (its Baseline Funding Level) and the amount left after deducting the other shares. 
 

2. Impact of Appeals 
The system is however, susceptible to fluctuations in income levels,  a key factor being 
that there are always appeals against rating valuations (RVs).  At present, revaluations 
take place broadly every 5 years (2005 & 2010), which inevitably result in appeals as 
businesses dispute the amount they have to pay.   
 
The current value of RVs under dispute in this district is £100M, of which £68M is in 
relation to two exceptionally large hereditaments.  Success in appeals varies, but over 
the last 12 months on average 60% were successful, resulting in an average reduction in 
rateable value of 12.6%.  Successful appeals result in refunds to the business, 
calculated by taking the RV reduction and multiplying it by the business rate multiplier for 
each year since the appeal was lodged, and then adding on lost interest.  For this 
district, a reasonable estimate is that over £24M of rate refunds may need to be repaid.  
However, provisions are in place to limit the financial impact on the City Council (and 
County/Fire), as set out in section 3 below. 
 
Clearly all appeals are not going to be settled at the same time and there is currently a 9 
month backlog.  However, the Government has pledged to clear 95% of the backlog by 
July 2015. 
 

3. Levy Payments and Safety Nets 
The success of any appeals and their timing can impact significantly on income 
projections, and clearly councils could not fund any such huge drops in income that may 
arise.  For this reason, the Government has determined that no Council will suffer more 
than a 7.5% loss in income in any one year, if net business rates income falls.  This cut 
off is known as the Safety Net and is equivalent to 92.5% of the Council’s Baseline 
Funding Level.   
 
 

Page 31



 
 
   Baseline Funding Level £5.012M 
   Safety Net @ 92.5%  £4.636M 
   Limit of Financial Impact £0.376M 
 
Similarly, the Government has also determined that Councils experiencing significant 
growth in business rates income will only be able to keep 50%, with the other half going 
to Central Government.  The idea behind this is that the ‘excess’ income from growth will 
go towards funding the losses in income over and above the individual Council safety 
nets. 
 

4. Small Business Rate Relief 
In the Autumn Statement, the Government pledged to continue the same level of Small 
Business Rate Relief (SBRR) for 2014/15 as well as adding some additional forms of 
support.  As these reliefs directly impact on the income collected, the Government has 
confirmed it will reimburse all Councils for 100% of the lost income for 2013/14 and 
2014/15.  Initial forecasts show that this could be in the region of £600K for the current 
year and £1.2M for 2014/15.  However, if this reimbursement, when added to the net 
income for business rates, takes the total over and above the Baseline Funding Level, 
then again 50% will go back to Central Government. 
 
For information, the grant is being paid to Councils as a Section 31 General Fund grant. 
 

5. Overall Financial Position 
Based on the latest forecasts, it is estimated there will be a total deficit of £12.565M in 
2013/14 on the Collection Fund in respect of Business Rates.  The main reason for this 
is that under current accounting practices provision has to be made for the potential cost 
of outstanding appeals based on estimates of success.  A breakdown of the position is 
shown below: 
 

 Settlement 
£M 

Original 
Forecast 
(NNDR1) 

£M 

Latest 
Forecast 

£M 

Difference: 
Original to 
Latest 
£M 

Net Income excluding Appeals N/A 67.892 68.809 0.917 
Provision for Appeals N/A -6.030 -19.512 -13.482 
Business Rates Collectable 60.083 61.862 49.297 -12.565 
Less:    (Deficit) 
  Central Govt Share – 50% -30.042 -30.931 -24.648 -6.283 
  County & Fire – 10% -6.008 -6.186 -4.930 -1.256 
Amount Retained by 
Lancaster 

24.033 24.745 19.719 -5.026 

  Less Central Govt Tariff -19.021 -19.021 -19.021 0.000 
Baseline Funding Level 5.012 5.724 0.698 -5.026 
Add SBRR S31 Grant   0.608  

Less Safety Net   -4.636  

Safety Net Payment Due   3.330  

 
 
 

 
 

Page 32



 
The table shows the changes in assumptions from the original forecast to the latest 
position.  Overall there has been additional income of £917K but an increase of 
£13.482M in the provision for appeals.  This increase is due to the fact that when the 
original provision for appeals was calculated, it was based on the Valuation Office (VO) 
national average success rate of 25%.  As the year has progressed, Officers now have 
access to more detailed information from the VO, and therefore a more accurate 
percentage has been used based on the average success rate for the Lancaster district 
over the last 12 months.  This has resulted in the success rate being increased from 25% 
to 60%, which therefore significantly increases the provision required.   
 
The latest forecast column shows that after allowing for the SBRR grant the Council is 
due back a safety net payment of £10.869M.  This will mean the Council’s baseline 
funding is now capped at £4.636M compared to the Settlement figure of £5.012M, thus 
resulting in a loss in income of £367K.  
 

6. 2014/15 Forecasts 
The position for 2014/15 is somewhat different as can be seen in the table below.  The 
latest forecast shows that after allowing for the SBRR grant (£1.199M) and the 50% levy 
payment (£1.122M) the amount of additional income retained by the Council will be 
£1.122M.  However, there is considerable uncertainty on whether this improved position 
will materialise, as highlighted in section 7. 
 

 Provisional 
Settlement 

£M 

Forecast 
(NNDR1) 

£M 
Net Income excluding Appeals N/A 68.438 
Provision for Appeals N/A -5.145 
Business Rates Collectable 61.256 63.293 
Less:   
  Central Govt Share – 50% -30.628 -31.647 
  County & Fire – 10% -6.126 -6.329 
Add: Cost of Collection N/A 0.229 
Amount Retained by Lancaster 24.502 25.546 
  Less Central Govt Tariff -19.392 -19.392 
Baseline Funding Level 5.109 6.154 
Add SBRR S31 Grant  1.199 

Less Settlement Baseline Funding  -5.109 

Growth  2.244 
Less Levy Payment of 50%  -1.122 

Forecast Retained Growth  1.122 

 
 
7. Risks and Assumptions 

The major risk in all these calculations centres on the assumptions made about the 
appeals success rates.  As the Council has the highest level of expected appeals in the 
County, it is highly vulnerable to significant changes in income.  A change of only 8% in 
the forecast on the two largest appeals would result in the Council moving into a safety 
net position again.  It is for this reason that funds will be set aside in a new reserve, to 
provide cover in the event that the Council falls into a safety net position for 2014/15.  
Furthermore, for 2015/16 and 2016/17 Government funding prospects are now £400K 
lower in the event that a similar situation arises.  There are, however, many other 
changes that could arise regarding Local Government funding in the intervening period. 

Page 33



!""#$%&

'#()*+# ,-./0%
12.3./"4*"5%
&#6.%7-)#(%89%
4/:3%-04;

%&#6.%.-%6#%
<(*..#"%1==%

%>#=#(7(#4;%.-%
&#6.%?-00#+.*-"%

!5#".3%

%>#=#(7(#4;%=-(%
@#5/0%(#+-)#(:%

%&#6.%3.*00%
6#*"5%A2(32#4%

%B/:C#".%
>#+#*)#4%D%
E"3./0C#".%
!5(##4%

1.F#(%!+.*-"%
D%>#/3-"3%

G %G% %G% %G% %G% %G% %G%

!"#$%&'('!)*+,-. HI8JK /0122 10342 221
!"#$%&'('!)*+,-.'5'6#$%'789" LJH 4 :/:
;"."-"9#%,)-'#-<'=)$,>8 8IKJM 10?33 20:/@
;"."-"9#%,)-'#-<'=)$,>8'AB*,$<,-.'C)-%9)$D KMN /?E @?

F-G,9)-H"-%#$'6"9G,>"+ MHI9KO 1/ @?@ @01I@ /20E:1 :?0?@?
=9)J"9%8'6"9G,>"+ JKHI89H :0?3I I:0:?1 :@0/?3 44@0/42
K)G"9-#->" KIJPP 10/EE
!)*+,-.'B"-"L,%+ OIKJMI8K8 4:/ 410/E: 404E@0/@/ OKPIJLO Q

,-./0%12.3./"4*"5 OINN8IJOL OPN MION9 MNILKJ MLIPK8 OIKHJILNN OKPIJLO

M'!+.*-"3%(#0/.*"5%.-%R-23*"5%S#"#=*.%&#6.

!?,E1T%SUETV%,!WUT%SX%'U>YE?U'

!AA#/03'5'N&"9"'#-'#JJ"#$'&#+'O""-'H#<"'#.#,-+%'%&"'>9"#%,)-')L'#-')G"9J#8H"-%'('9">)G"98'&#+'O""-'+*+J"-<"<'J"-<,-.'%&"'
)*%>)H"')L'%&"'#JJ"#$

S/"Z(2A.+:'5'N&"9"'#'<"O%)9'&#+'O""-'H#<"'O#-P9*J%'('9">)G"98')L'%&"'<"O%',+'+*+J"-<"<'*-%,$'%&"'O#-P9*J%>8'&#+'O""-'<,+>&#9."<

?0/*C%B#"4*"5'5'N&"9"'#'>$#,H'L)9'!)*+,-.'B"-"L,%'A!BD'&#+'-)%'8"%'O""-'<"%"9H,-"<'('%&"9"',+'J9)+J">%')L'9">)G"98'L9)H')-.),-.'!B

E"3./0C#".%,#(C*"/.*-"'5'N&"9"',-+%#$H"-%+'#+'J"9'#-'#.9""H"-%'&#G"'-)%'O""-'H#<"'('%&"'#.9""H"-%'&#+'O""-'%"9H,-#%"<'('#'
%"9H,-#%,)-'$"%%"9',++*"<

[*(3.%>#C*"4#('5'N&"9"'-)'#.9""H"-%'&#+'O""-'H#<"'%)'9"J#8'%&"'<"O%'('9"H,-<"9',-G),>"',+',++*"<
'#+-"4%>#C*"4#('5'N&"9"'-)'#.9""H"-%'&#+'O""-'H#<"'%)'9"J#8'%&"'<"O%'('#'9"H,-<"9'$"%%"9',+',++*"<
E"3./0C#".%</("*"5'5'N&"9"'#-',-+%#$H"-%'#+'J"9'#-'#.9""H"-%'&#+'-)%'O""-'H#<"'('#'9"H,-<"9'$"%%"9',+',++*"<

Page 34



Appendix D 

 
 

Property Group Update  
 
Quarter 3: October – 
December 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report from:  Senior Property Officer 
 
 

Page 35



1.0 Introduction and Background 
 
It was reported in Quarter 2 that as the first two quarterly updates have now set the 
scene future updates would be condensed to highlight any key changes and 
emerging property issues in a bid to prevent repetition.  
 
This Quarter 3 report is the first update in this new format although the intention 
remains not to provide in depth updates on all ongoing individual property cases but 
rather to provide a general overview of Property Group’s progress in certain high 
profile areas and flag up any other important issues relevant at the time of writing. 
 
 
2.0 Corporate Non-Housing Property Portfolio 1st Year Delivery Programme 
 
Projects included within the 1st year delivery programme fall into three procurement 
groups i.e. Minor Works (MW), Intermediate Works (IW) and Projects (P). Property 
Group has been allocated a budget of £2.402M for the current financial year 
(2013/14) to fund the implementation of the 1st year delivery programme. The 
intention is to manage the programme of work within this sum by reallocating funding 
between the projects as the scope and cost of each individual project is determined.  
 
A summary of progress to date follows:   
 
2.1 Minor Works (MW) Project Progress 
 

Property/Project 
Total Indicative 
Works for 
Year 1 

Indicative Works 
Brought Forward 
from Year 2 

Total Approved 
Tender (AMP) 

14 Buildings £49k £49k £103k 

 
At the time of writing it is anticipated that 100% of the Minor Works projects will be 
funded from the current 2013/14 Revenue Budget 
 
All 14 of the minor works (MW) projects have now been finalised. As detailed above, 
the agreed maximum price (AMP) includes works brought forward from the 2nd year 
delivery programme as it was deemed economically prudent to undertake this work 
at the same time.  
 
These individual minor works projects have commenced on site and the whole 
project is currently around 85% complete. 
 
 
2.2 Intermediate Works (IW) Project Progress 
 

 Property/Project 
Submit 
Design 
/tender 

Approve 
Tender 
(AMP) 

Original 
Indicative 
Works 
1st Year 

Total 
Approved  
AMP & 
Fees 

Proposed
/Actual 
Start Date 

 
White Lund Depot (1) 
Lancaster Cemetery Chapels (2) 
Lancaster Town Hall Railings (3) 
Lancaster Town Hall Paving (4) 

 
12/11/13 
12/11/13 
23/09/13 
23/09/13 

 
28/11/13 
24/12/13 
30/09/13 
30/09/13 

 
£231k 
£80k 
£50k 
£30k 

 
£113k 
£175k 
£47k 
£28k 

 
27/1/14 
27/1/14 
02/10/13 
07/10/13 

Page 36



Morecambe Town Hall (5) 

The Dukes Playhouse (6) 
Williamson Park (Intermediate) 
(7) 
Assembly Rooms (8) 
Storey Building (9) 
Maritime Museum (10)  
 
Intermediate General Projects 
(60 Euston Road, Regent Road 
PC) (11) 
 
Intermediate Demolition Projects 
(Ryelands Park Pavilion, Palatine 
Recreation Ground. (12) 

  

03/02/14 
03/02/14 
12/11/13 

 
14/11/13 
26/11/13 
31/01/14 

 
31/01/14 

 
 
 

31/01/14 
 

TBA 
TBA 

27/11/13 
 

28/11/13 
24/12/13 
10/02/14 

 
10/02/14 

 
 
 

10/02/14 

 

£53k 
£39k 
£90k 

 
£158k 
£233k 
£253k 

 
£36K 

 
 
 

£60K 

 

TBA 
TBA 
£80k 

 
£100k 
£323k 
TBA 

 
TBA 

 
 
 

TBA 

 

TBA 
TBA 

27/11/13 
 

9/12/13 
3/2/14 
3/3/14 

 
3/3/14 

 
 
 

3/3/14 

 

 Totals   £1,313k £866k  
 
Notes: 
(1) The work has reduced in year 1 as the site is under review.  
(2) The work has increased due to the advanced deterioration of the east 

chapel roof necessitating full replacement.  
(3) Complete apart from refurbishment of entrance lamps. 
(4) Complete.  
(5) AMP currently being finalised. 
(6) AMP being finalised. 
(7) Progressing on site. 
(8) Progressing on site. 
(9) AMP has increased due to the additional safety works to the garden walls.  
(10) AMP currently being finalised. 
(11) AMPs currently being finalised. 
(12) AMPs currently being finalised. 
 
 
 
 
2.3 Projects (P) Project Progress 
 

 Property/Project 
Submit 
Design 
/Tender 

Approve 
Tender 
(AMP) 

Total 
Indicative 
Works 
1st Year 

Total 
Approved 
Tender 
(AMP) 

Proposed 
Start Date 

 
Williamson Park (Project) (1) 
The Platform (2)  
City Museum (3) 
Salt Ayre Sports Centre (4) 
Mitre House Car Park (5) 
Banqueting Suite Ceilings (6)  

 
03/02/14 
06/12/13 
03/02/14 
03/02/14 
05/06/13 

TBA 
 

 
17/02/14 
24/12/13 
17/02/14 
17/02/14 
08/08/13 

TBA 
 

 
£383k 
£318k 
£258k 
£21k 
£60k 
TBA 

 
TBA 

£413K 
TBA 
TBA 

£115k 
TBA 

 

 
TBA 

10/02/14 
TBA 
TBA 

30/09/13 
TBA 

 
   £1,040m £528k  
 
 

Page 37



Notes: 
(1) AMP currently being finalised. 
(2) The work has increased due to requirement for additional roofing work and 

the addition of an air cooling system. 
(3) AMP currently being finalised. 
(4) AMP currently being finalised. 
(5) This work was undertaken outside the shared service by an external 

consultant. Additional cost largely due to the discovery that a base coat was 
required following removal of the existing road surface.  

(6) A conservation & structural survey was completed in September 2013 and 
the full extent of the deterioration is currently being quantified and 
estimated. Progress on this project will be reported once full details are 
known. 

 
2.4 Overall Position 
 
As at Quarter 3 the indicative programmes and spend profiles suggest expected 
spend in this financial year will be circa £1.218M. At this stage the potential slippage 
into year 2 is estimated to be in the region of £1.359M.  (Slightly more up to date 
figures have since been built into the Capital Programme for consideration at Budget 
Council). 
 
3.0 Capital Receipts 
 
Capital receipts totalling £9.443M were budgeted in the current year. 
 
Against this, the capital receipts received to date are as follows:  
 

• £20K for the Oxford Street garage, received in May 2013. 
• £7.25M for Land at South Lancaster (Booths), received in November 2013 
• £711K for Land at Heysham Mossgate, received in December 2013. 

 
Budgeted receipts in the updated Capital Programme now stand at £8.045M, taking 
account of the above sale proceeds for land at Heysham Mossgate, and the 
expected timing of other land and property sales. 
 

4.0 Performance of Commercial Buildings 
 

As can be seen from the table below there have only been minor changes to the 
occupation of the commercial property portfolio since the Quarter 2 update. 
 

 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 
Number of Properties 62 61 61  
Occupation by Floor Area     

• Total Let (m2) 18,022 17,749 17,917  
• Total Vacant (m2) 3,961 3,962 3,794  
• Total Area (m2) 21,983 21,711 21,711  

Income     
• Rent  (£) -955,350 -931,750 -931,750  
• Service Charge (£) -302,750 -302,750 -302,750  
• Total Income (£) -1,258,100 -1,234,500 -1,234,500  

Running Costs (£) 793,500 782,700 782700  
Annual Balance (£) -464,600 -451,800 -451,800  
Condition Survey (£) 5,004,498 5,004,498 5,004,498  

Page 38



 
The current occupation across the City Council’s total commercial property portfolio 
is now 83% which represents a slight improvement on the 82% reported in Quarter 2. 
The remaining 17% of vacant space now amounts to the equivalent of 3794m2, the 
majority of which is attributable to: 
 

• The Storey, which returned to City Council control in October 2012, has a 
vacant floor area of 708m2. This is an increase of 163m2 from Quarter 2, 
mainly due to the vacation of a suite of offices previously used by a large 
single tenant that went into administration. 

 
• St. Leonard’s House currently has 1862m2 of vacant space which is slightly 

less than Quarter 2 due to a new short term letting but as reported previously, 
the building requires considerable investment. Officers have now received 
Cabinet approval to proceed with plans to develop the building into student 
and young worker accommodation with strategic partners.  As vacant 
possession is gained, vacant space will clearly increase, but in due course 
the building should cease to be classified as a commercial property. 

 
• The vacancy rate at Citylab is currently running at 33% (or 326m2). This 

represents a 14% improvement over the 47% vacancy rate reported in the 
Quarter 2 update. This is mainly due to the letting of House No.4 together 
with a letting of some accommodation on the ground floor.  

 
Despite some progress the 3 buildings above still account for 78% of the total vacant 
commercial portfolio. As mentioned above, the recent developments at St. Leonard’s 
House are encouraging and further options are being explored as part of the joint 
property review.  The remaining 22% is made up of a small number of buildings that 
are currently between lets or to be sold. In general terms, while Property Group will 
continue in its efforts to minimise vacancy rates, it should be remembered that supply 
is currently outstripping demand in the commercial office rental market.  
 
 

5.0 Heysham Gateway Regeneration Initiative 
 
As a direct result of the construction of the new M6 link road commuting times into 
the Morecambe and Heysham areas will dramatically improve. Combined with the 
investment in energy generation in the area and improved access to the port, there is 
a good opportunity to regenerate the area attracting new businesses and industry 
which in turn will bring jobs and economic growth. 
 
Both the City Council and County Council hold a considerable amount of land around 
the Middleton Waste Transfer Station and both authorities have been working with 
the Lancashire Regeneration Property Partnership to develop a strategy for these 
currently underused assets to ascertain how they can deliver the greatest beneficial 
impact to the Lancaster district. 
 
A ‘Stage 1’ report has been prepared and full details will be reported to Cabinet for 
consideration in due course.        

Page 39



Agenda Item 9Page 40
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	6 Request from the Grand Theatre for Grant Support
	Appendix 1 Grand letter to Council
	Appendix 2 Map

	7 Corporate Performance Monitoring 2013/14
	App A Corporate Plan Performance Review Qtr 3 2013-14
	App B Corporate Plan Quarterly Trend Report Qtr3 2013-14
	App C Corporate Financial Monitoring Qtr3
	Annex A GF Variances Q3 PRT
	Annex B GF Capital Programme
	Annex C Business Rates Retention Scheme
	Annex D Debt over 90 days
	App D Property Group Q3 Update BPP 040314

	9 Planned Maintenance of Council Housing

